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Chairman’s Statement
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Moving into 2014, China’s economy entered into “new normal” stage of stable growth, for which the
pace of growth decelerated. At the same time the economy encountered “entangle of three issues”,
namely the fundamental slowdown in growth rate, the pains from economic restructuring and the
dilution of the side effects arisen from previous economic policies. Such situations intensified the
complexity of China’s economic problems. With the slowdown in economy, the fluorosilica industry
as a whole fell to historical low levels. Against the challenging backdrop, Dongyue Group Limited
(the “Group” or “Dongyue”), with the joint forces of all staff under the leadership of management,
has worked persistently to resolve difficulties and challenges. With a notion of learning from Formosa
Plastics as a role model, two competitions, namely “Increase volume alongside with efficiency” and
“One Skill with Three Examples” were organized. During the year the key
performance indicators exceeded budget and achieved year-over-year
growth. Net profit also increased as compared with the previous
year. This is a set of respectable results amidst a challenging

environment.
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Chairman’s Statement

Enhanced brand reputation and market
share

In 2014, Dongyue's brand reputation and influence was further
enhanced. During the year, by capitalizing on its competitiveness
in the industry, the Group continued to rank as the top leading
enterprise in the fluorochemical industry in China. Moreover, the
outstanding results of our proprietary innovation were continually
endorsed by the leaders of the central government in China, further
strengthened the brand reputation and leadership of Dongyue.
During the year, the “Five Major Solutions in Customers Services
under New Normal” proposed were warmly welcomed by our
customers. This again supported Dongyue as the number one
player and brand in the market.

Effective new management model and cost
control measures

The Group has always upheld the principle of persistent innovation.
Under the new normal economic condition, the setting of Formosa
Plastics as our role model became an important milestone in
the development of the Group. Formosa Plastics Corporation is
a leading petrochemical industrial enterprise in the region. The
Group devoted to learn from Formosa Plastics in the year of 2014,
focusing on getting insights from its innovative management
models. Through training classes and using IT management
in supporting refinement of management, the Group further
optimized its structure, models, process flow, systems, resources
allocation and upstream to downstream allocation. Productivity
was increased and competitiveness was enhanced under such new
normal macro environment.
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Solid results in technology innovation with
accelerated pace of technology transformation
and upgrade

In 2014, the Group achieved new breakthrough in the aspect of
technology innovation, with accelerated pace of transformation
and upgrade. During the year, a total of 12 new projects in
technology innovation and reform were completed. A total of 12
new products were developed and commercialized, with sales
amounted to 567 tonnes. These included FEP new product DS611
and FKM new product 246K from Huaxia Shenzhou; dispersion
DF-2046A and PTFE-dispersion product DF-203F under polymers
business; and gaseous silica product A-300 under organic silicone
business. There were another 6 new products developed and yet to
launch for sales. We had completed application for 34 patents, out
of which a total of 23 had been granted, and the Group owns a
total of 269 effective patents thus far. During the year the Group set
up 7 new processing laboratory and fluorosilicone material analysis
laboratory. This will provide information required for the ongoing
improvement of products in terms of functions and quality. With
regards to the cooperation with AFCC to jointly develop cell
membrane for automobile fuel, it is now in the process of testing.
This solidly demonstrates the competitive edges of Dongyue in the
research and development of environmental friendly new products.
The Group also expanded production capacity in line with business
needs. During the year, the increased production capacity includes:
(1) FEP by 1000 tonnes, including FEP resin by 500 tonnes and PVDF
concentrate by 500 tonnes; (2) PVDF by 3000 tonnes; (3) VDF by
5000 tonnes.

Besides, the Group promoted and invested in China Minsheng
Investment Company Limited (“CMIC") in 2014. This investment
presents historical opportunities to the Group and allows us to
capitalize on possibilities in the integration of fluorosilica industry
chain.
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Chairman's Statement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives to shoulder
its responsibility to contribute to the society. The Group donated
approximately RMB5.22 million during the year.

2015 is the final year of the “Twelve Five-Year Plan” of China and
also the year to formulate the “Thirteen Five-Year Plan”. The new
normal environment presents both stringent challenges and
valuable opportunities for the fluorosilica industry. After nearly
two years of trough period in the industry, it is evident that the
fluorosilica industry is due to see a rebound.
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In the year of 2015, the "new normal” characteristics of China’s
economy will continue, namely “low investment input, medium-
pace growth, good quality, optimal structure, high efficiency and
new driving forces”. These go hand-in-hand with the enhancement
in consumption, manufacturing, new environmental protection
and new energy industry. As a new strategic industry, fluorosilica
materials will have rapid development and structural optimization.
This will help the integration and upgrade of the industry, which
will drive out players with obsolete facilities and curb investment
in excessive low-productivity facilities. Meanwhile, this will
promote the application of new products and the development
of fluorosilica resources, helping the sustainable development
of the industry. As the largest fluorosilica materials enterprise in
China, Dongyue is well positioned to lead and drive the process of
industry upgrade and development.

By focusing on creating value for customers, Dongyue formulated
strategic positioning in the new normal environment, namely
“new planning, new products, new technology, new auxiliary
support and new model” and “vitalize energy in the enterprise,
enhance competitiveness in the market and expand influence
in the industry”. In 2015, the Group will continue to implement
intelligence learnt from Formosa Plastics and name it as "The
year of Revamp and Transformation”. The Group will continue to
optimize organization structure and allocation of resources. The
Group will also strive to expand the market share to consolidate the
leading position in the market, increase investment in research and
development to continue to leverage on the benefits in technology
and innovation, and expand export business. The strategic
initiatives in the coming year include:
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Chairman'’s Statement

Optimize organization structure and
resources allocation

Amidst a business environment mixed with opportunities
and challenges, the Group has to adopt new strategies,
focusing on the innovation of products and technologies
as well as efficiency management. The Group will continue
to strengthen management, improve deployment of
management functions and professional division of labour to
optimize allocation of resources, asset and human resources
management.

Enhance customer services and market share,
consolidate leading position in the market

The “Five Major Solutions on Customer Services under
New Normal” will be implemented to continue to enhance
product quality. The Group will demonstrate the brand
competitiveness through launching of high-value-for-
money products, optimization of customer service, and
strengthening rapport with and research for high-end
customer market segment.

Increase investment in research and
development, and strengthen development of
new products and application technologies

The vitality of manufacturing industry largely depends on
new technologies and new products. The Group will increase
its investment in research and will commit not less than 2%
of revenue in research and development. This will accelerate
technology upgrade and enhance the contribution from
commercialized new products.

Reasonably expand overseas investment and
grow export business

While growing core business, the Group will seek investment
opportunities overseas and expand new growth areas. The
Group will consider to explore new channels to expand
international markets in the next year.
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V) Improve appraisal and reward system

In an effort to align staff members’ contribution and
operating efficiencies, a profit sharing policy linked to
development of new technology, new products, and new
growth driver will be established to allow our staff members
who contribute to the Group to enjoy rewards accordingly.
The Group hopes this will arouse workforce's passion and
creativity which will help enhance the development and
efficiencies of the Group.

In 2015, China’s “new normal” will stay. Against this backdrop, the
Group has formulated imperative strategic approaches based on the
extensive experiences accumulated in the past two decades. With clear
development strategies, good corporate structure, renovated business
models and distinguished operation team, we will work diligently to
attain our vision of becoming the leader of global fluorosilica industry.
Despite the headwinds in the market, the Group was able to keep on
its growth. This is primarily attributable to the relentless efforts of its
management and staff as well as the long term trust and support of its
Shareholders and business partners. |, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, investors
and business partners, as well as the management and staff for their
efforts and contribution to the Group.

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 13 March 2015

008



B IE E & am EE 0 AT

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial review
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue of approximately
RMB7,599,696,000, representing an increase of 12.04% over
RMB6,782,814,000 of the previous year. The gross profit margin decreased
to 16.00% (2013: 16.16%) and the consolidated segment results margin®
was 12.23% (2013: 10.69%). The operating results margin was 11.74%
(2013: 9.58%). During the year under review, the Group recorded profit
before tax of approximately RMB691,030,000 (2013: RMB561,501,000),
and net profit of approximately RMB496,996,000 (2013: RMB437,226,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB483,276,000 (2013: RMB465,898,000). Basic earnings
per share were RMB0.23 (2013: RMB0.22). The Board of Directors of the
Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.09
(2013: HKS$0.085) per share to the shareholders whose name appear on
the register of members of the Company on 4 June 2015.

*  Consolidated Segment Results+Revenue X 100%

+ &
gy
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments,
of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the year ended 31 December 2013:

BZ20145 128310 LEE BENBFANALEFE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

g Kz

§ £ | A= Wegs E3 B X

Operating Operating

Reportable and Results Results

EHRREENTH Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin

AR#BTRE AR®TR ARBFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

maTFME Polymers 2,152,054 364,213 16.92% 2053751 553,000 2693%

Bikht Organic Silicone 1,514,114 (31,805) (2.10%) 1,520,879 74,645 491%

VRH Refrigerants 3,228,747 367,230 11.37% 2,923,890 74013 253%

—ERR BELE Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
(Tevc]) Rz Chloride (PVC") and

Liquid Alkali 1,195,081 62,944 5.27% 1,143,614 4015 0.35%

TERMmE Property development 525,087 145,955 27.80% = (15,026) =

it Others 672,440 20,784 3.09% 604,484 34,123 565%

9,287,523 929,321 10.01% 8,246,018 724,770 8.79%

D BEEE Less: Inter-segment sales (1,687,827) - - (1,463,804) = =

A Consolidated 7,599,696 929,321 12.23% 6,782,814 724,770 10.69%
RESBERAR —Z-NFFR 010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the year under review, although there showed signs of progressive
macro-economic recovery in United States and European countries,
foreign industrial and manufacturing markets did not demonstrate strong
economic recovery momentum in general. Furthermore, as a result of
structural economic adjustment of the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the slowdown in the domestic economic growth continued and
the manufacturers were prudent in setting out their production strategies,
which adversely affected the market demand for majority of industrial
and manufacturing products. In this accord, except for 3,000 tonnes per
annum of PVDF (Polyvinylidene Fluoride), 5,000 tonnes per annum of VDF
(Vinylidene Flouride) and 1,000 tonnes per annum of FEP (Fluorinated
Ethylene Propylene) (all belonging to downstream products within the
Polymers segment), the Group had no massive new capacities coming
into operation during the year.

However, having regard to the wide applicability of the fluorochemical
and organic silicone products with favourable characters, the market
demand still showed constant growth during the year. With its scalable
vertically integrated self-sufficient value chain, the Group continued to
capitalize on its leading market position, strong R&D capabilities and
extensive sales network, to upgrade its technology level, to optimize
its product mix and to develop and promote new products. As a result,
during the year under review, the Group still progressed by increasing
its overall production and sales volumes year-on-year for majority
of its operating segments of the Group. Nevertheless, the domestic
fluorochemical and organic silicone markets had faced up with intense
competition and structural overcapacity issues with numerous low-end
products emerging in the market, which led to a decrease in the selling
prices of majority of its fluorochemical and organic silicone products
year-on-year. Thanks to (1) the Group experienced improvements in its
Refrigerants segment and its Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali
segment, which were mainly attributable to the substantial increase in
the price of R22 (a principal product within its Refrigerant segment),
improvement in the business condition in the domestic chloride methane
markets (mainly dichloromethane and trichloromethane (a main raw
material for its Refrigerants products)), (2) the Group consolidated the
financial results of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co. Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou”") for the whole of 2014 and (3) the Group is able to
record operating profits for its Property Development segment, although,
there had been a significant drop in the selling prices of the products
in the Polymers segment and the Organic Silicone segment turned into
operating losses during the year and there had been no production
and sales of CER units during the year, the Group is able to record
improvements in its operating results margin during the year under
review.
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Polymers

Thanks to the full-year consolidation of Huaxia Shenzhou's financial
results by the Group and its year-on-year aggregate sales volume
growth, the revenue from the Polymers segment increased by 4.79%
to RMB2,152,054,000 from RMB2,053,751,000 of the last year. Despite
the year-on-year decrease in the selling prices of the Group’s polymers
products resulting from the emerging of excessive new production
capacities in the market, the Polymers segment remained to be the
largest revenue contributor to the Group’s revenue, accounting for
approximately 28.32% (2013: 30.28%). Polymers segment, together with
the Organic Silicone segment, fall within the “New Material Industry of the
PRC" with huge potential, business prospects and government support.
During the year, the Group continued with its strategy in developing and
promoting new products, giving rise to potential new profit drivers for the
Group.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of TFE
(a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production of such
polymers products as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level
of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation, and ageing
and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and can also
be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be widely
applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics and
automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic fluorochemical
monomer, which can be used to produce various fine chemicals).
Furthermore, the Refrigerants segment of the Group supplied R22 and
R142b as the raw materials for the production of a variety of downstream
fluoropolymer fine chemicals including FEP (modified materials of PTFE,
produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire
insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves
and pipes), FKM (Fluorine Rubber, a specialized fluorinated material
produced with VDF, HFP and TFE, which is mainly used in the fields of
aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry because of
its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical and heat
resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce VDF, mainly
used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating resin and
lithium battery electrode binding material) and VDF, in which Huaxia
Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals, including
PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another major production category of Huaxia
Shenzhou.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Coupled with the increase of 10,000 tonnes per annum of TFE and 12,000
tonnes per annum of PTFE during 2013, the expansion of new production
capacities of VDF and PVDF in 2014, and the launching of new PTFE and
other downstream polymers products, during the year under review,
the Group was able to capitalize on the steady growth in the domestic
and foreign polymers market and record substantial growth in the sales
volumes of PTFE, HFP, FEP, FKM and PVDF year-on-year. These can mitigate
the negative impacts arising from the fall in the selling prices, leading to
the rise in the sales revenue of this segment.

This segment contributed 39.19% (2013: 76.30%) to the total segment
results of the Group, while its segment results margin decreased to
16.92% from 26.93% of the last year. Such decrease resulted from the
significant rise in the raw materials cost (R22), in respect of which the
Group maintained nearly 100% self-sufficiency ratio, the Group and the
decrease in the selling prices of the Group’s polymers products.

Organic Silicone

Accounting for 19.86% (excluding inter-segment sales) of the
consolidated revenue of the Group for the period under review, the
revenue (including inter-segment sales) coming from the Organic Silicone
business segment slightly decreased by 0.44% to RMB1,514,114,000
from RMB1,520,879,000. This segment mainly includes the production
and sales of DMC (upstream organic silicone intermediates that are
used as raw materials to produce deep proceeded mid-stream and
downstream silicone products, such as silicone oils, silicone rubber
and silicone resins), 107 Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross
Rubber (collectively referred to as “Silicone Rubbers”, deep proceeded
silicone rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key raw material
for producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-
end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Qils.
Named as “Industrial MSG”", organic silicone is widely applied in military,
aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other industries, mainly
in the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and
sealants and are a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group
initially produces silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally-
generated chloromethane and further processes them to become
silicone intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the
Group produces Silicone Rubbers and other organic silicone products).
The Group can also be able to produce and generate other by-products
and high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone
Oils through its production processes.
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Same for the Polymers segment, the Group's strategy in the Organic
Silicone segment is to devise and develop new downstream products
with higher profit margins. The expansion in the production capacities
of Silicone Rubbers and Gaseous Silica in 2013 had led to the significant
year-on-year increase in the sales volume of these two categories, which
had been partly mitigated by the decrease in the sales volume of DMC
as a result of increase in the internal consumption. Despite the year-on-
year decrease in the selling prices of the Group's organic silicone products
resulting from the re-emerging of excessive new production capacities,
the Group was able to record only slight decrease in its sales revenue of
this business segment year-on-year.

During the year, as a result of the decrease in the average selling prices
of DMC, Silicone Rubbers and Gaseous Silica year-on-year, coupled with
the increase in raw material costs of silicone powder and chloromethane,
the Organic Silicone segment recorded segment loss of RMB31,805,000,
compared to an segment profit of RMB74,645,000 for the last year, which
translated to segment results margin of -2.10% (2013: 4.91%).

Refrigerants

During the year, the Refrigerants segment accounted for approximately
27.14% (excluding inter-segment sales) (2013: 28.29%) of the
Group's revenue. The revenue (including inter-segment sales) of the
Refrigerants segment increased by 10.43% to RMB3,228,747,000 from
RMB2,923,890,000 of the last year, which was mainly due to the increase
in the average selling prices of R22 and other refrigerants products.
This segment includes the revenue from the manufacturing and
sales of traditional refrigerants products (mainly R22), new green and
environmental-friendly refrigerants products (mainly R32, R125, R134a
and R410a and so forth) and other types of refrigerants products (mainly
R142b and R152a and so forth). The Group produces and sells refrigerants
products externally to both domestic and international customers and
internally (mainly R22 and R410b) for its Polymers business segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As the backbone refrigerants product of the Group with the largest
production capacity in the world, R22 is the most widely used refrigerant
in the PRC and is generally used in household appliances. Apart from
that, it has been one of the key raw materials for the production of
the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream fluorinated
chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant mixture for
other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a) to replace R22. Currently,
R410a has been the principal replacing refrigerant which has been widely
applied in inverter air conditioners and other green home appliances.
R134a is broadly used in the refrigeration and air-conditioning systems
in automobile air conditioners, while R152a is another key refrigerant
product of the Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols
and cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as
refrigerant, temperature controller medium, or intermediates of aviation
propellant, it can also be one of the main raw materials for the production
of VDF.

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by other
green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped granting
approval to the building up of new R22 capacity. Starting from 2013, the
Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for the sales of
R22 as a refrigerant or ozone depleting substances for all of the domestic
R22 producers. As a result, the year-on-year growth of the sales volume
of R22 was limited and the Group's sales volume of R22 recorded a slight
decrease during 2014 as compared to the year of 2013. However, the
substantial rebound in the selling price of Trichloromethane has led to
increase in the selling price of the Group’s R22 product year-on-year,
resulting in the substantial increase in the sales revenue of R22 achieved
during the year.

With the gradual recovery in the PRC's property market, the green
home appliance products end-market and other relevant industries
have all boosted the domestic demand for R410a. As a result, the Group
experienced considerable increase in the sales volume of R410a, and
the Group can record an increase in the sales revenue of this category.
The successive growth in the sales volumes of such green refrigerants
as R410a over the last few years indicates that green refrigerants would
gradually substitute R22 as the most widespread refrigerant in the PRC.
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The irrational massive expansion in the capacity of R134a continued
to adversely affect the domestic market and the general weakness in
the domestic and foreign automobile markets had intensified the price
competition, which made the Group see the substantial drop in both
the sales volume and price of R134a. Such depressing supply situation
applied to R125 markets as well, with the result that the Group recorded
decrease in the selling price and the sales volume for R125.

The results of the Refrigerants segment contributed 39.19% (2013:
10.21%) of the total segment results of the Group, while its segment
results margin was 11.37%, compared with 2.53% of the last year.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

This segment includes the revenue from the production and sale of
the Group's two main ancillary products of the Refrigerants segment
(dichloromethane and liquid alkali) and the PVC products.

During the year, accounting for approximately 15.67% (excluding
inter-segment sale) of the Group’s consolidated revenue, the revenue
(including inter-segment sales) for this segment increased by 4.50% to
RMB1,195,081,000 from RMB1,143,614,000 of the last year.

Liquid alkali is a basic chemical product from the production of the
methane chloride (essential chemical for the production of refrigerants
and organic silicone products), and used in the textile, power and
materials industries. Methane chloride includes dichloromethane,
which is mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for
polyurethane. The Group engaged in the production of PVC (a widely
used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction industry to
replace traditional building materials). The production of refrigerants
products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is one of
the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s PVC
production can ensure production synergies and increasing economic
value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year under review, the sales volumes of PVC, liquid alkali
and dichloromethane products considerably increased as compared to
the last year. While the selling prices of PVC and liquid alkali products
recorded year-on-year decline, the year-on-year selling prices of
dichloromethane experienced a remarkable rebound as a result of the
recovery in the domestic methane chloride market, which principally led
to a significant rise in the sales revenue of this segment. Coupled with
the stable per unit production cost of dichloromethane products, this
segment was able to record segment profit of RMB62,944,000, compared
with segment profit of RMB4,015,000 in respect of the year ended 31
December 2013.

Property Development — Dongyue International Project (the
“Project”)

The Project comprises, among others, residential portion of two parcels
of land which are adjacent to each other. They are located at the west
of Liuguan North Road, the north of Huantai Avenue and the south
of Gongyuan Road, Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province,
the PRC with a total site area of 189,381 square metres. The residential
portion is 157,187 square metres, upon which the Group planned to
construct 23 residential blocks with a total planned gross floor areas of
approximately 296,000 square metres. The Project comprises five phases
which are planned to be completed by the end of 2017. Up to the end
of December 2014, the Group, owning 100% interest in the Project, had
been constructing the first four phases with planned gross floor area of
approximately 204,000 square metres

The Group commenced pre-sale of the phase 1 starting from the
financial year 2013, and phase 2, phase 3 and phase 4 starting from the
financial year 2014. The Project received overwhelming response and
a total of approximately 152,000 square metres have been sold out at
an average selling price of approximately RMB6,480 per square metre.
During the year, the sale of a total of 644 residential units, with a total of
approximately 80,870 square metres, have been completed and amounts
of RMB525,087,000 and RMB145,955,000 have been recognized as the
segment revenue and the segment profit, respectively, during the year.

In addition, the Project encompasses the construction of certain
commercial units. As of the end of 2014, commercial units with a total
of approximately 6,800 square metres and approximately 2,800 square
metres have been constructed and sold at an average selling price of
approximately RMB15,700, respectively. However, as the relevant sales
have not been completed, no corresponding revenue and results has
been recognized during the year.
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Others

This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other side and by-products of the various operating segments,
such as Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine, and the
CER business.

During the year, in the wake of continuing weakness of the CER market,
the market price of CER units fell to an unreasonably low level and
consequently, the Group has temporarily ceased the production and
sales of CER units and utilized the prevailing facilities for its Refrigerants
segment and thus, no CER revenue (year ended 31 December 2013:
RMB48,445,000) and no CER profits (year ended 31 December 2013:
49,225,000) was recorded by the Group during the year.

During the year, accounting for approximately 2.11% (excluding inter-
segment sale) of the Group’s consolidated revenue, the revenue
(including inter-segment sales) for this segment increased by 11.24% to
RMB672,440,000 from RMB604,484,000 of the last year, and this segment’s
results decreased to RMB20,784,000 from RMB34,123,000 of the last year.

The Group has been carrying out the necessary exploration works in
respect of the nickel mine and the iron and fluorspar mine of the Group.
While the Group did not record significant progress during the year, the
Group would strive to engage in the actual extraction and production
once the relevant extraction licenses are obtained from the relevant
government bureau, which enables the Group to secure source of raw
materials for its operating segments and to align with the Group's strategy
of vertical integration into the fluorochemical value chain.

During the year, the Group has subscribed for 1 billion shares in China
Minsheng Investment Company Limited ("CMIC") for an aggregate
amount of RMB1 billion (the “Subscription”), which had been accounted
for as available-for-sale investments. The Group considered that the
Subscription will provide the Group (indirectly through CMIC) with
potential investment and acquisition opportunities in industries and
enterprises with growth potentials, which, together with its other equity
investments, allows the Group to capitalize on the financial leverage for
the purpose of diversifying its business risks, while maintaining the focus
of its business and strengths in its core fluorochemical business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year, the distribution and selling expenses merely decreased
by 1.09% to RMB251,209,000 from RMB253,976,000 of the previous year.
As a result of stringent cost control measures imposed by the Group, the
amount of distribution and selling expenses were steadily maintained,
notwithstanding the increase in the overall sales volumes of the Group
during the year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the administrative expenses decreased by 2.91% to
RMB289,791,000 from RMB298,483,000 of the previous year, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the expenses on share options
granted to the Directors and the employees.

Finance Costs

During the year, the finance costs significantly increased by 126.17%
to RMB201,441,000 from RMB89,065,000 of the previous year. This was
mainly attributable to the substantial increase in the amount of the
borrowings of the Group during the year.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB675,754,000 (2013:
RMB1,306,035,000). The Group's capital expenditure is mainly for the
acquisition of fixed assets including the equipment and facilities for the
Group's expansion projects in (1) the 5,000 tonnes per annum of PVDF, (2)
the 5,000 tonnes per annum of VDF and (3) the 1,000 tonnes per annum
of FEP, and for the Group's various technological revamp, energy saving
and emission management projects.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group's total equity amounted to RMB5,897,804,000, representing
an increase of 7.02% compared with that as at 31 December 2013. As
at 31 December 2014, the Group's bank balances and cash totaled
RMB1,345,212,000 (31 December 2013: RMB1,243,296,000). During the
year under review, the Group generated a total of RMB720,713,000 (for
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the year ended 31 December 2013: RMB1,114,330,000) cash inflow from
its operating activities. The current ratio!” of the Group as at 31 December
2014 was 1.38 (31 December 2013: 1.46).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available
bank balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and
support from its banks as well as its strong operational cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group will have adequate resources
to settle any debts and to finance its daily operational and capital
expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled a total of
1,152,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”). After
the cancellation of the Buyback Shares, the number of issued shares of the
Company was decreased to 2,118,167,455 as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB3,276,524,000 (31 December 2013: RMB2,152,564,000). The gearing
ratio? of the Group was 24.67% (31 December 2013: 14.16%).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2014, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,886,087,000, which are
wholly repayable after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,390,437,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates.
The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
6.48% (2013: 6.45%) and 6.19% (2013: 6.16%) per annum, respectively.
As at 31 December 2014, 40% (31 December 2013: 35%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's borrowings were denominated in
RMB, HK and US dollars, amounting to approximately RMB2,926,919,000,
HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB157,780,000)
and approximately US$31,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB191,825,000) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Group Structure

During the year, there has been no material change in the structure of the
Group.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets = Current Liabilities
@) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt = Total Capital

Net Debt = Total Borrowing — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB249,503,000 (31 December 2013: RMB558,694,000),
and bank deposits of RMB185,145,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB106,320,000), which were pledged to secure the Group's borrowings
and the bills payable of the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States dollars)
were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group entered into forward contacts for managing certain risks
arising from foreign currency transactions. In order to reduce the risk
of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the foreign
currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign
currencies payment schedule in the near future.
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BIRFMBR Employees and Emolument Policy

R2014F 128318 - AEBEHEHe6824% EE The Group employed 6,824 employees in total as at 31 December 2014
(20135128318 1 6,797%) - AEBIZEE R E (31 December 2013: 6,797). The Group implemented its remuneration
TITR|EBFSBOR R LBERETE A& policy, bonus and share option schemes based on the performance of
BB REASRERAKSEEF  AERE the Group and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as social
FHe insurance and pensions to ensure competitiveness.

IEoh - AEE TR —IBEREFEERMES In addition, the Group had also adopted a share option scheme as a long
FEERREERHN —BRARP -EFRLE term incentive to the Directors and eligible employees. The emolument
AREEENTNECREARRARFHEE 2K policy for the Directors and senior management of the Group is set up by
ERASENEE  EARERAE LR TR the Company's Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's
JE © performance, individual performance and comparable market conditions.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for the
management and operation of the Company's businesses and has the
general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members of
the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 55, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 25 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone, and a
director of Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue Precision
Chemicals, all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. In addition, Mr.
Zhang is the director and the chairman of the Strategy Committee of
China Minsheng Investment Company Limited ( R BR A& KD B R
Ad]) . Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of political affairs with a postgraduate
degree in economics. He had served the People’s Liberation Army
Navy from 1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang currently serves as Chairman of All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce (2 B T @8 ) , Deputy
Director of China Fluorine and Silicon Material Industry Association ( #
HaE s A TE W E) and a standing committee member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong Province ( L&
E ) . He has obtained the honorary titles of National Outstanding
Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), Powerful
Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry (First Session), Top
10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the International Market,
National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and Most Outstanding CEO of
the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine "Capital CEQ" (“& A A 1£").
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Mr. FU Kwan, aged 58, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He is formerly a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu
is the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macro-
Link Holding Limited ("Macrolink Holding") and is a director of Macro-
Link International Investment Co. Ltd. (“Macrolink International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Fu is a senior economist
with a postgraduate degree in business administration. Mr. Fu has over
25 years of experience in corporate management and business strategy
planning. Mr. Fu was the deputy director of the Economic Committee of
Liling City, Hunan Province, head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of Liling
City, Hunan Province and the vice chairman of the 10th China Federation
of Industry & Commerce, and is a committee member of the Chinese
People Political & Consultative Conference, the honorary chairman of
Chamber of Commerce of Beijing and Hunan Enterprises ( 1t 54/ 1
2EP® ), vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce ( BB &
IR 2 ) and director of political affairs committee of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2B TRAB A2 WMFEREZEE)  Mr. Fu
has also been awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding Entrepreneurs in China
Certificate” in 2003 by the China Professional Managers Association. Mr. Fu
is the director of Macro-Link Property Joint Stock Company Limited ( T
FERNEERMD AR QR), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Fu owns a direct 10.63% and an indirect 75% interest in
Macrolink Holding, which wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink
International is a substantial shareholder of JLF Investment Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangi, aged 65, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and its
predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience
in the chemical industry and is a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone, Dongying
Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Precision Chemicals and
was a director of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are the Company’s
subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of Dongyue
Chemicals and currently the president of the Group. He is a senior officer
of political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing the Labour
Force of Zibo City" in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.
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Mr. CUI Tongzheng, aged 53, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Group and its predecessors since November
1988. Mr. Cui has over 20 years of experience in the corporate financial
management. Mr. Cui holds a bachelor degree from China Statistics Cadre
College as well as a MBA diploma from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Dr. WU Tao, aged 56, has approximately 20 years of experience in
corporate management. Dr. Wu obtained a doctorate degree in computer
science from National University of Defense Technology ( EEEs
K& ) in 1991. In his early years, Dr. Wu served at National University of
Defense Technology and at various business incorporations as president,
vice president and general managers. Dr. Wu joined the Company in 2005
and is currently a director of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers,
Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongying Dongyue Salt.
In addition, Dr. Wu is currently a director and vice president of Macrolink
Holding, which owns 80% equity interest in Macro-Link Asset Investment
Co. Ltd. (FrEBEZE BRI E A A]) , in which Dr. Wu is the chairman,
and a director of various local incorporations. Dr. Wu was a director of
Tong Hua Winery Joint Stock Company Limited ( 38/t %) &8 i (7 A R
A A]) , the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
until August 2012.

Mr. ZHANG Jian, aged 42, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since February
2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience in the investment
banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree in
Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
and a Master degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is the controller of listed company division
of Macrolink Holding, as well as an executive director of JLF Investment
Company Limited and Macro-Link Property Joint Stock Company Limited

(CGRER T SERMNERAF) .
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference, Fujian. Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent non-
executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE, namely Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited,
JLF Investment Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings
Limited.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. He has over 30 years
of experience in research and development of fluoropolymer and organic
silicone industries. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree in chemical
engineering from East China Institute of Technology in 1982. Mr. Yang
served at Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry (predecessor
of China Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry) as
engineer and chief project officer and as senior engineer, chief engineer
and vice-head of the Design Department of Chengrand Research
Institute of Chemical Industry, and is currently the chief engineer of China
Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry, and officers
of National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision Test Centre and National
Engineering and Technological Research Centre for Organic Silicone. Mr.
Yang is also the vice chairman and director of the Professional Committee
and the director of the Organic Silicone Committee of China Association
of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr. Yang is currently
an independent director of Hubei Xingfa Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd, a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Save for the aforesaid,
Mr. Yang does not have any directorships in the listed companies during
the past 3 years.
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Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has been with
the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of experience in the
chemical industry. He was the technical officer of research department
of Shen Yang Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang
Chemical Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research
Centre. He has also taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of
Chemical Technology of China National Bluestar Group; chairman of China
Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry Association
(FFEE EEM B TEWE ) and vice chairman of China Engineering
Plastics Association (1 B T2 #8 #4175 & ) . Currently, Mr. Yue is the
honorary standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine
and Silicone Material Industry Association; Professor of Engineering; an
expert subsidized by the PRC State Council. Mr. Yue was an independent
director of Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology Co,, Ltd (“Chengdu
Guibao”) (X EIEERHE AR B R 2 F]) and is currently an chairman
of supervisory board of Chengdu Guibao, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Save for the aforesaid,
Mr. Yue does not have any other directorships in listed companies during
the past three years.

Senior management

Mr. ZHOU Guangsheng, aged 59, is the deputy president of the Group.
He has been serving the Group since March 1988 and is responsible for
production, safety and environmental protection. He served as a deputy
head of production plant and deputy production general manager from
April 1989 to March 2004. He served as the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals from March 2004 to March 2006. He has been
serving as the vice president of the Group since March 2006 until now.

Mr. ZHANG Heng, aged 47, is an engineer and had obtained an
undergraduate degree in economics from the China Petroleum University.
He has been serving the Group since November 1988 and is formerly the
general manager of Dongyue Polymers and the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals. Mr. Zhang is currently the vice president of the
Group and a director of Dongyue Polymers. He has pioneered several
research projects which had twice been awarded the Shandong Science
and Technology Spark Award, and had several times been awarded the
Zibo City Science and Technology Improvement Award and the Zibo City
Spark Award.

027
Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



EXRAEERAERR
Directors” and Senior Management’s Profile

THREE 515 B199%6FIARES  THBR
AEE BERWNEERER BERBEIRES
WREREEFREE R R EREAEFE  20055F -
RN [ Bl TEBEEH RIS 9T 8 ] F85% + 2006
FEBEZHEAOBRITERLEITEE]BR X
EHBETRXEE LB

BAKRLLE 515 B2003F 108 BN A E
B BHIAEEZ2RRERDEERRERE
UERRERD FEBREIRLLIE - B2009F2 A RE
SEHERETES D FAKE-

DREME

REA KK 4358 BEARAIREIWME - R20095F
JTRASENMAREE RAETEZEHEARN ARG
R MRARWMESS  REETMT  ZH K
I AEDCRESISFLH RMBAEER - R
45 H @ 7A20004E7 A 2008459 A 1E (E /R K B 2 P
FIRETRATNEENBSRE  TEREE—K
BIBR &5 R E IS ET BB R A F - REER1994
FEREENBBREAE BB -HARER

AEMARERGENTEGHMAEEE -

RESEEBRLE —ZF-NEFH

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 51, has worked for the Group since
September 1996 and is responsible for technical matters and projects.
He is currently the general manager and a director of Dongyue Organic
Silicone, and the chairman of Dongyue F&S. In 2005, he was awarded the
title of Outstanding Scientific Researcher of National Chemical Industry
and in 2006, he obtained the award for “Outstanding Worker of National
Chlor-alkali Industry”. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor degree in Chinese
Literature.

Mr. ZENG Hongzhi, aged 51, has been serving the Group since October
2003 and is formerly a chief officer of the Group's safety and environment
protection department and the Group's corporate administration
department, as well as the deputy general manager of Dongyue
Polymers. He has been serving as the general manager of Dongyue
Polymers since February 2009 until now.

Compa ny secretary

Mr. NG Kwok Choi, aged 43, is a company secretary of the Company.
He joined the Group on 3 July 2009. Mr. Ng is primarily responsible for
the overall financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the
Company. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience in the fields of finance,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he had been the
group financial controller of two companies listed on the Main Board of
the HKSE from July 2000 to September 2008, and had worked for more
than five years in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in Accounting in 1994. Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 63.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 (six months ended 30 June 2013: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per share (the “Final Dividend"”) (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.07 per share) (2013: HK$0.085 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMB0.067 per share), in respect of the year 2014, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (the
“Register”) on 4 June 2015. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval
of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM") to be held on 1 June 2015.
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Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending and
voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 27 May 2015 to 1 June 2015, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 May 2015.

The Register will be closed from 5 June to 9 June 2015, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2015.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 66.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Exems

Report of the Directors

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as computed in accordance with the Companies Law
(2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB1,452,058,000, of
which HK$190,635,070 (approximately equivalent to RMB150,392,007) has
been proposed as the Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed
securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE"), a total of 1,152,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the "Buyback Shares”) at a price range of HK$2.64 to
HK$2.99 per share. The aggregate consideration for the Buyback Shares is
approximately HK$3,177,000, which was funded from internal resources of
the Company. The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled on 17 January
and 14 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Share options
Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution of
all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the “Scheme”),
the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors of the Company
and employees of the Group, for the recognition of their contribution
of the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares. According to the
Scheme, the board of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its discretion, invite
any eligible participants to take up options to subscribe for Shares of the
Company, which when aggregated with any other share option scheme,
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date on
which dealings in the Shares first commence on the HKSE unless further
shareholders” approval had been obtained pursuant to the conditions set
out in the Scheme. The total number of Shares in issue and to be issued
upon exercise of all option under the Scheme and any other schemes
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the “Offer”) must be taken up within 28
days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as consideration.
The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the highest
of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the Offer; (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Shares. The total number of Shares which may fall to be issued
under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed
208,000,000 which represents 10% of the total issued share capital as at
the Listing Date unless further shareholders’ approval is obtained. The
share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not more
than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and conditions
of the Scheme and any conditions of grant as may be stipulated by
the Board. Unless terminated by the Company by resolution in general
meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 16 November 2007.
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Report of the Directors

As at 31 December 2014, particulars of the options granted to certain

Directors and employees of the Group under the Scheme are set out

below:
BEREA
Number of options
R20145 R2014%
1818 RER RER RER  12A31A
3 ¥ EFSE ff HRTE FE REAH TESmE TEBER
Balance Outstanding
asat Lapsed Reclassified ~ Exercised as at
2HE Name or Category 1 January during during during 31 December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
#ERER of participant 2014  theyear  theyear theyear 2014 Price DateofGrant  from until
Br (M)
HKS  (Note)
YTES: Executive Directors:
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong
i Tranche 1 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 0ME6AIE  01F6A1E 2016F681H
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1 June 2016
Fh Tranche 2 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 2011%6A18 W013F6A1A 016F6A1A
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1 June 2016
F=H Tranche 3 3325000 - - - 3325000 813 011F6A1A  2014F6A1B  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
St Tranche 4 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 01%F6A1A  2015F6A1H  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
HEsnaE Mr. Liu Chuang
E-i Tranche 1 3375000 - - - 3375000 813 011%F6A1H  2010F6AIBE 2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1 June 2016
i Tranche 2 3,375,000 - - - 3375000 813 011%F6A1A  2013F6A1B  2016F6A1R
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1 June 2016
= Tranche 3 3,375,000 - - - 3375000 813 01%F6AIH  014F6ATH  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
Emi Tranche 4 3375000 - - - 3375000 813 01%F6A1R  2015F6A1B  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
ERREE Mr. Cui Tongzheng
ERbi Tranche 1 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 813 0ME6AIE  01F6A1A 2016F6A18
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1 June 2016
FH Tranche 2 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 813 011F6A1H  2013F6A1B  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1 June 2016
£ Tranche 3 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 813 0M%E6A1E  014F6A1R 2016F681H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
g Tranche 4 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 813 2011%6A1H 2015F6A1H 016F6A1A
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
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BEREA
Number of options
20145 R20145
1R18 RER RER RER  12831R
3 ¥ EFSE ff HROE FE REAH Figedilh TEBER
Balance Outstanding
asat Lapsed Reclassified  Exercised as at
2RE Name or Category 1 January during during during 31 December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
#ARER of participant 2014  theyear  theyear theyear 2014 Price DateofGrant  from until
Br (M)
HKS  (Note)
REEE Mr. Zhang Jian
i Tranche 1 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 2011F6A1A  201F6A1H 201656818
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1 June 2016
i Tranche 2 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 011F6A1H  2013F6A1B  2016F6A1A
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1 June 2016
=4 Tranche 3 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 011F6A1A  2014F6A1E  2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1June 2016
EMmit Tranche 4 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 2011F6A1A  2015F6A1H 201656818
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
Es: Employees:
A% In aggregate
i Tranche 1 27,700,000 (375,000) - - 27325000 813 01%F6A1R  012%F6A1R 016F6A1A
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1 June 2016
i Tranche 2 27,700,000 (375,000) - - 27325000 813 2011%6A18 W013F6A1A 016F6A1A
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1 June 2016
F=H Tranche 3 27,700,000 (375,000) - - 27325000 813 011%F6A1A  2014F6A1B  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1 June 2016
Emit Tranche 4 27,700,000 (375,000) - - 27325000 813 01%F6A1A  2015F6A1B  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
142800000 (1,500,000) - - 141,300,000

Mt : EERERHBBZANRNETERSE7SET -

REEEERAF

—E-mEER

Note:  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant is HK$7.98 per

Share.
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Report of the Directors

The fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme were
determined and measured using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
on 1 June 2011. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price shown above, volatility of 64.65%, dividend yield of 3.68%, an
expected option life of 3.5 to 5 years and on annual interest-free interest
rates of 1.00%, 1.18%, 1.34% and 1.49%. As any changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in the
opinion of professional appraiser, the valuation model for the share
options granted does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of
the fair value of the share options.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted to any person under the Scheme since its adoption.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr. Wu Tao

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Liu Yi (resigned on 14 August 2014)

Mr. Yue Rundong

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014)

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company's articles of association, at each
of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one- third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Zhang Jian
will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposal for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options” in
this report, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 28.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out
on pages 44 to 60.
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Disclosure of interests

EERFETBRAERKR®G  1EE (a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
ROREEENERRRXE short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures
R2014F 128318 AR EZEREETH As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
AERBEESEENHEATRARRHE Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
HEEE (EERBAFRBAERD ([FHR respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and
HAE 601 ] ) EXVER) ByRR 17D - MHREAR D R (& debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
BEFHRBRBEES RAEGOIEXVEE7 the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
K Eesn HARE AR T R TR S ok (the "SFO") which were required to be notified to the Company
KE (BERIEFESLKEEKREBRTHE and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
EESERERNER SRR )  SIREFE (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
5 REAEAR B 3521678 52 8 R 5% IR Pl & deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
AR RSAR  IRIELTEITAES were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
ETBEAR LT ([1Z2ESPR]) A in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
MERQNARBRAANESSORABNT to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and the
HKSE were as follows:
B% 17 =5 A6 B8 HEBITRAE
EEHE ERME B4 EE Bol
Number of Shares or % of issued
Name of Director Nature of interest underlying Shares share capital
RERFKE ¥R 166,551,273 (L) 7.86 (L)
Mr. Zhang Jianhong Corporate interest!”
Btk 20,447,636 (L) 097 (1)
Beneficial interest
BELEE EER? 609,646,818 (L) 2878 (L)
Mr. Fu Kwan Corporate interest?
BlEaEkE hEERY 87,360,000 (L) 412 (1)
Mr. Liu Chuangi Corporate interest®
BEamiEsm
Beneficial interest 19,853,454 (L) 0.94 (L)
EREEE EERY 156,852,363 (L) 741 ()
Mr. Cui Tongzheng Corporate interest®
BEamiEs 10,162,180 (L) 048 (1)
Beneficial interest
REEtL EmiEn 85,000 (L) 0.004 (L)
Dr. Wu Tao Beneficial interest
RERE EnfEn 597,091 (1) 003 (L)
Mr. Zhang Jian Beneficial interest
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(1 WBEIFRBAEERE BRRERLTERE
Dongyue Team Limited# 2 B & » HU5R 55 A4
18 1A Dongyue Team Limited?§ A #9166,551273
P&BEAR () B e o
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¥REERAB ([FEBEX)2EHEE-
EMEERNERITREEES - M
TRA R RAREER AR (FIFE [AREA
BEFRAR]) ([RAE]) REELRESRIE
B75%11063% © ILoh  RADRIBRBEELER
B X E 24 E A 5335% 433330 %

@)  ZERGKHAETRESE RSB HDongyue
Wealth Limited B 5 15 8 - R IR & F K & (&
1 8 9 4 3 4R A 7 Dongyue Wealth Limited$
6 #987,360,0000% P& 17 () HE B 2 o

4 REFFRPEGRAN ARERBLEER
A Dongyue Initiator Limited#) 2 S0 HE 25 - B
5t A 48 A A Dongyue Initiator Limited$ & #Y
156,852 363RX AR 17 (L HE A e 2 o

B E XTI R & SN 1R20145F 124318 K
NABEFREBITHABRESEENHE
ABER AR B S EATEEAE (EE R
&7 R EE RGIEXVER) B B tn - ARRE A D
REEETHEATAREES RBE GO
SEXVEPFHRT7 K 8D BRA G AN A B X P
Mg IOX R (BRRERERFRAEREIA
FAREREFEIESEENERNAR)
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Pl E e MR IR B HRIBREST
AIEAE AR MR FTHEaE SORR ©
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Notes:

1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

) These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-Link
Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (the former name is
“Xi Zang Cheung Shek Investment Limited”) (‘Cheung Shek”) as to 75% and
by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%, respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial.
In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as
10 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

(3) These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in the
87,360,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

5) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.
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Report of the Directors

Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s
interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

B% 17 R AH BE

B4 EE

Number of shares or
underlying Shares

HEBTRAE
Bat

% of issued
share capital

T EE B B R

Macrolink International

MEBEE

Macrolink Industrial

FTER TR

Macrolink Holding

A (i fEEEal)

Cheung Shek (the former name
is “Xi Zang Cheung Shek”)

BXEut

Mrs. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited
Dongyue Team Limited

Dongyue Initiator Limited
Dongyue Initiator Limited

B A -

e el

609,646,818 (L)

Beneficial interest™

20

609,646,818 (L)

Corporate interest™

A

609,646,818 (L)

Corporate interest™

RO

609,646,818 (L)

Corporate interest™

AR

609,646,818 (L)

Corporate interest™

S

166,551,273 (L)

Beneficial interest?

BaiEm©

156,852,363 (L)

Beneficial interest®

Notes:

28.78 (L)

28.78 (L)

28.78 (L)

28.78 (L)

2878 (L)

7.86 (L)

741 (L)

U]

EZ%H&@E%&?H&&IWE@%@ i 5 22 gk
KA EMEE ARG - =R EE R
%H@‘ﬁ?%%ﬁﬁfﬁ TR AR B R A R
@?%iﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&mm%i@%*EEﬁ
AIRESELERE NEZTHAEEFS335%%
3333% 8 m

Q REIZIHFRPOEEO ARRERTER
ﬁDongyue Team Limited#) &= #P 1 7 W%
A W AR VB 5 Dongyue Team Limited T &
166,551,2730 A&7 (LAY HE 2 ©

B REBHEBEGRL aRERBEERE
Dongyue Initiator Limited#) 2 & 42 & + #0 & %
A 4 1% VE ¥ /5 Dongyue Initiator Limited FT 5 &
156,852,3630X A% 1 (DEI #E %

@ LR

) These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn is
wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company owned
by Cheung Shek as to 75% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%, respectively,
wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao
Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

3) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

4) L: Long Position
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(c)

R2014F 12831 HRAEEHME (0

Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

EARINER December 2014
EERNELQTR
BRITRE
RABMELR AR ZHBARNEERRER EEME HAMEABES L
% of issued share
capital/registered
Name of the Name of substantial shareholder  Nature of capital of such
Company'’s subsidiary of such subsidiary interest subsidiary
WERREREM AR WIRASHRMIREBRLRE  RF 16.78
(IREAREE])
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Shandong HiTech Investment Corporate 16.78
Co,, Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S") Co,, Ltd.
NEERER BRI TIARQF TRE R IEIREBR AR NG| 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chifeng Peak Copper Co, Ltd. Corporate 49
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.
REEABERR AT TR R B ERR AR NS] 20
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd. Chifeng Peak Copper Co, Ltd. Corporate 20
RERTHEERR LA MEBEXREBRRAA] NS 40
(IREREEHEE]) (IFEMEERE])
Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd. Macro-Link Asset Investment Corporate 40
("Dongying Dongyue Salt”) Co,, Ltd.
("Macrolink Asset Investment”)
ERERBACITARQF MEMEXRE'
Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Macrolink Asset Investment!
Co,, Ltd.
L R R & S0 S KL A BR A A IR 2 UL THAR Q) NG 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Lai Wu Wen He Corporate 49

Chemicals Co., Ltd.

i :

Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

Note:

U]

FEREEREF AR EREH ¥ 140%E
HOMBERTEERAREREEALETE
PR A ) B 7504 75+ A A 5] BI 75 8 T 25%1E
moAl EMEXREMBERERERE
B TERA RBIBI0%E L °

RESEEBERLE —ZF-NEFH

)

040

Macrolink Asset Investment is a 40% equity holder in Dongying Dongyue Salt
which, in turn, owns 75% of Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co, Ltd,
with the remaining 25% owned by the Company. Consequently, Macrolink
Asset Investment indirectly owns more than 10% of Dongying Dongyue
Precision Chemicals Co, Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2014, no other person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had
any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly
or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all at general meetings of any
other member of the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 9.63%
— five largest suppliers combined 35.12%
Sales
— the largest customer 1.74%
— five largest customers combined 6.62%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had not entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported pursuant to Rule 14A.45 or 14A.63 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 not falling under Rule

T~ 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:
04FNHEBRERS FELR BEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2014 Annual Cap Actual
(AR®EBEE&ET) (AR®EBE&T)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
MEREEREESE (FIBREHME  Framework agreement for the 64.1 17.37
GEEARAR)RETXE purchase of industrial salt from
BWERHE ((RERE Dongying Dongyue Salt (previously
Bl (Fis) named Dongying Macrolink Salt Co, Ltd.)

(the "DDS Agreement”) (Note)
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Note: The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group's production
of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material for the Group's
refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production). Dongying Dongyue
Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an associate of one of the Company’s
executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an associate of the Company's substantial
shareholder, Macrolink International. Macrolink Asset Investment is held as to 80% by
Macrolink Holding and 20% by Cheung Shek.

On 31 December 2013, Dongyue F&S entered into the DDS Agreement with
Dongying Dongyue Selt for three years to 31 December 2016. Details of the DDS
Agreement are set out in the Company's announcement dated 31 December 2013.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid by means
of cheque or remittance with one month credit term and on normal commercial
terms which will be determined after arm'’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no less
favourable than that offered to independent third parties. There is no provision in
the DDS Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively source industrial salt from
Dongying Dongyue Salt.
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Report of the Directors

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions. The auditors have reported
to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of the
Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 13 March 2015
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE") has promulgated
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) which came into effect
for listed issuers’ first financial year commencing on or after 1 January
2005. Afterwards, the HKSE has made revision to the Code (the “Revised
Code") which becomes effective from 1 January and 1 April 2012 and
1 September 2013. The Board has completed the review of the Revised
Code. In order to continue to maintain high standard of corporate
governance, the Board ensures that, taking into account the prevailing
standards adopted by the Company and its own circumstances, the
Company can comply with the requirements as stipulated under the
Revised Code, by making the necessary disclosure, modification to the
various procedures and documentation.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption and improvement of the various procedures
and documentation which are detailed in this report. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has adopted and
complied with the code provisions of the Code and the Revised Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the relevant
paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group's management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Liu Yi resigned from his office as the Company’s
Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 14 August
2014 and that Mr. Yang Xiaoyong was appointed as the Company’s
Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from the same date,
there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs”):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr. Wu Tao

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 23 to 26 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results, as well as corporate
governance, financial, capital, remuneration and mergers and acquisition
matters. During the year under review, four Board meetings and an
annual general meeting ("AGM") were held. Apart from the AGM, no other
general meetings were held by the Company. The attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is set out as follows:

HE S RIT HE R R
EEESELY BEREHER
Number of

Board meetings Attendance of

attended/held the AGM
HITES: EDs:
REBREA Mr. Zhang Jianhong 4/4 v
HE A Mr. Fu Kwan 2/4* 'S
REFEAE Mr. Liu Chuangi 4/4 v
FERESE A Mr. Cui Tongzheng 4/4 v
REEL Dr. Wu Tao 1/4 v
R AE Mr. Zhang Jian 4/4 v
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TRELA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4 v
2L AE Mr. Liu Yi 4/4 v
HERELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 0/4 X
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 4/4 v
* Mr. Fu appointed certain individuals to attend the Board meetings on his behalf

* BREEREETEARARFHHAALFESS
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during his absence.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual and interim
results, internal control, dividend policies, corporate governance, capital,
financial, remuneration and investment matters. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior management
under the supervision of the Board. In addition, on 12 December 2014,
the Chairman and all the INEDs met without the presence of other EDs
to exchange views on matters concerning the business development,
management and corporate governance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of
regular Board meetings (or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is
normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3
days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as stipulated
under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the Directors have been
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors are provided
with written materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.
On 23 May 2014, the Company organized for the Directors an in-house
workshop (the “Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:
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HITES: EDs:

REBREA Mr. Zhang Jianhong v v
HE A Mr. Fu Kwan v v
REFEAE Mr. Liu Chuangi v v
FERESE A Mr. Cui Tongzheng v v
REHET Dr. Wu Tao v v
R AE Mr. Zhang Jian v v
BYFHTES: INEDs:

TRELA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v v
2L AE Mr. Liu Yi v v
BEEB AL Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v v
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong v v
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
during the year under review, the Board has established a corporate
governance committee which is responsible for, among others, reviewing
the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance and the
Company's compliance with the Code and the Revised Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they
have complied with the required standard set out in the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same position
provides the Group with stronger and more consistent leadership and
allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power, which has been closely
monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that
the current arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the
Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise in
relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have sufficient
time to participate in the decision making process of the Company.

The EDs of the Company did not enter into service contracts with the
Company. However, each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of approximately two years commencing
from 1 January 2014 and 14 August 2014.

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at AGM under the Articles.
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Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee and a Corporate Governance
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which have been available on the Company’s and the HKSE's websites,
and is chaired by INEDs (except the Nomination Committee and the
Corporate Governance Committee). To further enhance independence, all
the committees (except the Corporate Governance Committee) include a
majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Liu Yi or Mr. Yang Xiaoyong after 14 August
2014 (being the Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee cover, among other things, the review of the
Group's policy and structure for the remuneration for all the Directors and
senior management of the Group, the approval of the remuneration for
all the EDs and senior management of the Group, including the granting
of share options to the Group's employees and the EDs under the
Company's Share Option Scheme, and the recommendation to the Board
for the remuneration for the INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

HEBITEEE
BERR™

Number of

Committee meeting
attended/held member:

ZEEHE: Committee member:

BEB LA (R2014F8F14HE1E) M Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014) 0/1
BB A (R2014F8 148 B E) Mr. Liu Yi (resigned on 14 August 2014) /1
TREXSE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 1/1
SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong 11
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During the meetings, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2013
was approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management and
the Group's remuneration related matters.

In addition, certain matters relating to the recommendation of the
remuneration of the INED appointed during the year were approved
by written resolutions signed by the members of the Remuneration
Committee.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

A

Number of persons

1,000,0017T £2,000,0007T
2,000,0017T £ 3,000,0007T
4,000,0017T £5,000,0007T

iR ETRRIN 0B FREN B MEEHH R
—%

A &= EHEES/E EE N b e e )
11120
EZEES

ERZESRARF=ZEBBIIENTES D7
ABTREBAE (ZECXFE ABAETEER
RGPS EEAEEENE)  BIERE (3
BB LA (20148 F14871%) ) R EBREAH
B o

BERZEENIZREAENARRFHRERA
A EERERKRR IR ESSRMEZ
RER REE EFZERRBRINEZEAA
E=gRMESENAMLESNEZEET M S MR
BiER - BEZZEENAREHASENT K
WAZFF M A RREEAE S - SRt IR R

1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1
2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2
4,000,001 to 5,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the financial
statements.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee with
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise), Mr. Liu Yi (or Mr. Yang Xiaoyong after 14 August
2014) and Mr. Yue Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these regards.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HEBITEES
BRRY

Number of
Committee meeting

attended/held
ZEBEgHE: Committee member:
TRBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BB E (R2014F8H14H BHE) Mr. Liu i (resigned on 14 August 2014) 3/3
HBEEB A (FR2014F8A14HEZ(E)  Mr Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014) 0/3
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3

ARRNEZBEEASEBBEREAB TG
Ji=3 o
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o

MAEBREZ2013F 128318 IEFE R BT
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PR RNET BIEERAEREZ2014F12
AR FEMNFREEE RETERESSE
HEtE o

REEEBRLE —ZF-NEFH

The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out as
follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2013; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

In addition, on 13 January 2015, the Audit Committee conducted pre-
audit meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of
the financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2014. The Audit Committee also met with the management
on 13 March 2015 to review the accounting standards and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control
and financial reporting including the review of the Group's annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014 before proposing to the Board for
approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Liu Yi (or Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
after 14 August 2014) were appointed as the members of the Nomination
Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the
independence of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning
the diversity of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board
has adopted for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant
disclosure on the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BITEES
=P8
Number of
Committee meeting
attended/held

ZEBEgHE: Committee member:
RERFE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 2/2
TRBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
2R E Mr. Liu i (resigned on 14 August 2014) 1/2

(PR20145F8 A 140 BHE)

BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014) 1/2

(M2014F8 A14B EELT)

REeBRPE ZEEXEIR TESSNERA
MEE YHtRESSFELERZEARES

HWETEFEZ L EERRIEFTSRERBRE
RANAIGTE B IEMEE IIENH T BT
EEMEIE-

AN BREBUFNTEFEHIETEREDS

RIREZBesBRERBZEMREARILE

During the meetings, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the approval of the Policy for the diversity of
the Board, the recommendation of the measurable objectives that the
Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as reviewed the
independence of the INEDs.

In addition, certain matters relating to the appointment of the INED
during the year were approved by written resolutions signed by the
members of the Nomination Committee.

053
Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



S

N
EamE

Corporate Governance Report

BEON - REE2014F 12 A3 B ILFEE EFeC it
HEEESKEZ TILBER - BEBERNBEHE 7
PURNE

A.

KRB

ARARPAPLREREY —BZTNEES
MEERZ  —AELEZTNEZTEARA
WEREEHNTRKEE RN ITEER
B ER MHNREMERE HWEEERK
RFATESENREMES EFEMEN
ZEDUARAES BIRA LR EEANER
NEBGRHERIBERETEXNEZTTIEDN
o

ARAEEE

| RETAREREREFRREST
(L8 S REE T RE B A
EEE B GEG

2. ARFEHERUIHBEFERES
R B M#E FER X BF
SN ED - FiRRERTEBSZ T -

EERER

. REAZEESEFRELEERRENA
eritAEEREFSNAN I
ERABROAITER

2. ABERERFLEMEABR M E A []
RAEEEME UREERZFER
FERGHER BREXEREREN
TEHIEE -

WA BE
REZEEHBNEERERTARSE WM
EEgRbETEEARELL-

BEES O NEZE2014FE 1N ANBEFEREMAT
AltERE:

RESEERAF

EFEenNREEEREBEAFEIN (FEE
1) BT~ BT TE e TARAE B

—E-mEER

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board
approved the Policy for the diversity of the Board. A summary of the Policy

is set out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with
a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2014:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas academic,
research or working experience (outside of PRC);
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ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates with
overseas academic, research or working experience in other industries in
the selection of INEDs.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Dr. Wu Tao were appointed as the members
of the Corporate Governance Committee. The primary duties of the
Corporate Governance Committee are to develop and review policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board, to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, to review and monitor policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and to review the
compliance with the Code and the Revised Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Reports.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting. The attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

BREEERR
Attendance of
the meeting

EZEEHE: Committee member:
REBREA Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
2MEHFEE Mr. Liu Chuangi v
REEL Dr. Wu Tao v

RezME ZEeXBTwmILENARAR
CREARRLRFEANEEEE EFMNE J\I&

FESXERR URALREAHRE %BEA

ZEeKBERESTSRMA-

During the meeting, the members discussed and reviewed matters
relating to the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, the training and continuous professional development
of Directors, and this Corporate Governance Report, which was
recommended by the Committee’s members for adoption by the Board.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors
are responsible to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on
the financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion
solely to the members of the Company as a body and for no other
purpose.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management
procedures of the Group, including setting a management structure
and its terms of reference to ensure efficient and effective use of the
Group's resources to assist the Group in achieving its operation objectives,
safeguarding the Group's assets against any unauthorized use or disposal
and ensuring an appropriate maintenance of according records and the
availability of reliable financial information for internal use or external

release.

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls on the Group’s
business and financial operations. The Audit Committee completed
the annual review of the Group's internal control evaluations in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 through a professional
accounting firm, which mainly covered certain of the Group'’s business
and financial operations and followed up the Group’s major control
weaknesses in respect of the previous year. No major issues but areas
of improvement have been identified. All recommendations from the
professional accounting firm will be properly followed up to ensure that
they are implemented within a reasonable period to time.

056



5B 4 S8 AT Y B =

HE2014F12 831 B IEFE - INEZE AT IR L TAZ
RS HI BN 2 4B R840 A A R #1,525,0007T °

HZE2014F 128318 ILFE - SMNEZBEN R FFA]
EBRZRBE B R FL A AREE6250007T - 7]
DT AEMBERMEE2014F6 A30H 1H6/E A HAR A
SEFRHYBRENE R ARK455000TR2QF
FMEZE2014F 1283 B L FEASERTHNE
A R®170,0007T ©

BERZESEZBREY « BERSHETH
ARBZEE FHERCEESTSRE  EA
FRERREERFBFKEHE-

IR R BRI

BRREMBRREBIAE ([RREFH K
BNER

RIBEZERMA  ER (LA ERFBERLRAEA
AIEERNRRAGE LREZHBERA D2 —
(10%) V& AR ([BRREFRIREERAL]) - A
RaMpERIEFTENERMITMEZTSHA
AIWEELARBRREN RGN EEER M
9 = B IR L FA Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman, KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands - EBEB W ERRUNEBEFELITE
15158 R R 1502 « IRERAFRIR G B RA L
ARRENERPIIRRRE ARG L& TFiaiE
BEIE - BB E R AL ARER
ATZEH-

& oh -~
B =K

BEREERRFIASERALNERKERES
B RANERRHFESTSARBREIAE
WREMBERBEEEZRARECRREAR D
BT REBERAA RREFHIASENEZER
EMEARNBR - HESENE2ERR-T—
RNARKREBRBREIAE  BRFHIAG R
KALTAREETAEBRAAE MRRENAE
BRATHESERBARAEMELNAEA
ERXERARAMBRREIAGERALER
e

O REAEE

Corporate Governance Report

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
approximately RMB1,525,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB625,000, analyzed into (1) RMB455,000
for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the six
months period ended 30 June 2014, and (2) RMB170,000 for the review of
the internal control evaluations for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene
extraordinary general meetings (“"EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently situated
at Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, PO. Box 2804, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1112, Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently
situated at Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the
businesses of the EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be
signed by all the EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According to the
Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition,
the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
them as a result of failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM
Requisitionists by the Company.
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Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Center, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified and
upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will request the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or special
resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the Company’s
website www.dongyuechem.com.

058



RERDEBSETEANER

PR AIBER B EE A M EAAZEL BB A
WMEXEEFEE FARBELAWT:

B

1T

HLITEI515%

TR DISBNRE

B 5 :852-3529-1009

EH : dennisng1805@gmail.com

BRATAAR AEMRRAR LREF R IR
=B

REEBRE

BERE

RETI @ BRRAFERE ARREEY
BRRERERINEREE:

BRBFRGRHEFEHBRREHER R
HEZGMBR M

WARFBHFIBAEERFEBEH I
EREREER LR ESEHALELY
#ile

IRNEE (RREEEFZEENIRER AKX
B)HERRBFAG@ERRRE L AORE -

O REAEE

Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

AXA Centre,

151 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 852-3529-1009

Email: dennisng1805@gmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to facilitate
and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.
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Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there has
been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 13 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF DONGYUE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and
of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE2014F12A3BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

201445 20134F
B 5 AR®Tx ARET T
2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Iz Revenue 6 7,599,696 6,782,814
$HE AR Cost of sales (6,383,611) (5,686,752)
EH Gross profit 1,216,085 1,096,062
HaA Other income 7 290,501 178,186
DN EERY Distribution and selling expenses (251,209) (253,976)
THRX Administrative expenses (289,791) (298,483)
MR EFERS Research and development expenses (73,398) (71,668)
BhE A AR Finance costs 8 (201,441) (89,065)
P& AR %48 Share of results of associates 283 445
B B AT 8 Profit before tax 691,030 561,501
FTiSFifM X Income tax expense 9 (194,034) (124,275)
FREF M2 EWALLEE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 10 496,996 437,226
T 75 G m A & Profit and total comprehensive
2ERA (FX) 4858 : income (expense) attributable to:
PiNNETEF DN Owners of the Company 483,276 465,398
el il i & Non-controlling interests 13,720 (28,672)
496,996 437,226
Bl ZEF Earnings per share 13
ER(AR®ET) Basic (RMB) 0.23 0.22
e (AR Diluted (RMB) 0.23 0.22
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

®2014%12A318
At 31 December 2014

20144 20134
B 5 AR TR AR®BTFIT
2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
IRBEE Non-current assets
EA Y ] Property, plant and equipment 15 4,456,865 4,494,015
HEEYE HBEL Prepayments for purchase of property,

B2 B HOR plant and equipment 28,333 54,556
A LS Prepayments for land lease - 367
ENES Prepaid lease payments 16 482,254 562,117
BEE Intangible assets 17 169,110 179,241
REEE N RIR R Interests in associates 18 1,822 17,038
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 19 1,195,283 195,283
R IBE E Deferred tax assets 20 159,473 166,451
e Goodwill 21 85,894 85,894

6,579,034 5,754,962
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 22 799,861 700,054
HEME Properties for sale 23 804,389 569,488
ENES Prepaid lease payments 16 13,441 15,272
FEMBE N R At EULFRTE Trade and other receivables 24 1,906,478 1,218,239
ZEER Entrusted loans 25 370,000 425,000
EEFRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 185,145 106,320
IRITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 26 1,345,212 1,243,296

5,424,526 4,277,669
i p=R i Current liabilities
JE BRI N H AT FRIE  Trade and other payables 27(@a) 1,972,619 1,604,381
REBEEMEZ LS Deposits from pre-sale of properties 27(b) 539,550 438,784
e Borrowings 28 1,390,437 866,474
MIEBE Tax liabilities 14,716 16,736
IEEWA Deferred income 29 10,623 12,797

3,927,945 2,939,172
RBEETE Net current assets 1,496,581 1,338,497
HEERREBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 8,075,615 7,093,459

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2014512 A31H

At 31 December 2014

20144 20134
B 5 ARET ARETF T
2014 2013
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BEXEK#1E Capital and reserves
&% A Share capital 30 200,922 201,013
& Reserves 5,439,885 5,065,336
RNATHER NG Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 5,640,807 5,266,849
FEVERR AR R A = Non-controlling interests 256,997 243,979
R Total equity 5,897,804 5,510,828
kFBEB Non-current liabilities
PEIEIRA Deferred income 29 234,422 246,377
RIERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 57,302 50,164
BE Borrowings 28 1,886,087 1,286,090
2,177,811 1,582,631
8,075,615 7,093,459

F3R179E NG AMEHRRFLEETEM2015%3  The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 179 were approved
A3R#bEREETE  WHTIATRERES: and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2015 and
are signed on its behalf by:

RER ER K
Zhang Jianhong Cui Tongzheng
BF BF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2014F 12831 ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

ARTREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BhE RS #ER
BE  REEE B AKEE KAEE i REEA &t RREE it
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Waka)  (Wskv)  (Wiko)
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share option Merger Capital ~ surplus  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests Total
RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
W3EIF1RES Balance at 1 January 2013 01111 1238838 270825 (32210 101,098 627139 2541514 4948315 W43 5206858
ERETRZERA (RX)4E Profft and total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - - - 46589 4658% (2867) 8126
gg Tenster - - - - S 7 ] - - -

FEREREALE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 4000 4000

BRAHERRRERRS Dividends paid to non-contrling nterests - - - - - - - - 989 989

Bk (K Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - - - (948 (1948) - (1940)

EAREEE BRI AR Recognition of equity-setted shared-based payments - 1) - - - L) L)

EE Rk (i) Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 30) o8 (80 - - - - - 269 - (26%)

WBENANALE Balance at 31 December 2013 201,013 1,236,038 345,787 (32210 101,008 699,065 2,716,058 5,266,849 243979 5510828

EREHRZENALE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - -6 4326 1370 4969%

gg Tensfer - - - - - s (1729 - - -

FEREREALE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 1,400 1,400

BRENFERRFRRRS Dividends paid to non-contrling nterests - - - - - - - - 2100 (100

ERRE (H) Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - - - (43315 (143315) - (4331)

ERELE NRAT AR Recognition of equitysetted shared-based payments - - 35 - - - -5 31

EE Rk (ko) Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 30) O) 4 - - - - -5 -3

WUENANALE Balance at 31 December 2014 200922 1,2335% 382319 (32210 101,008 716317 3,038767 5,640,807 256997 5,897,804

BT Notes:

@  APREBEIRER2006F TR EEE - @ Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

()  R2007F11 168 AABIEEAMEFHIEETER ()  On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
E{E0.13E 7T ) & 38 1% 275,000,0008% + 7% 5 & [0 X @ issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
BREHEZBNMAAEEBREITRA—OFEHE- cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
[ B - #1%35%4,000,000,0000% I EEO BT E B the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
B - 18 5 TE A% AN 8 Z2400,000,00078 T © 7220074511 15 the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
A - [A)35 B i% 31 % £7275,000,0008% & A% E E0.1/8 7T K ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15

FLER - BES BB EITHREAENREERE November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of
FFABARGHE- new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.
F‘Wﬁ%@\ﬁiﬂ %% A% B s B 5E O 2 R R s B R The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
BRRREROR S B EENBEITE HEEE subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the
REAREETIR, 8- corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital
reserve.

© BEFEARLMBE ([FE]) (REIE) kigEA © In accordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") and the
BEIRMAA AR TR EME A RESEERRES relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
BB TR ZREFN0%NEE SEEAE to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in
TE B accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.
EERBREEAREERN —Hy  EHAMREDE Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
EREMEARS0%H &5 - BIBE#E— S HE - $E}J§EP an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not
(RRPE) EERSEEN BIEERBEEER required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may
WINAEE REBHEEN AL BT AIEINE AR be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to

increase capital by means of conversion.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE2014F12A3BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

20145 20134
i AR¥TR AR®F T
2014 2013
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
REED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR 5 A& A Profit before tax 691,030 561,501
FEIFR - Adjustments for:
BMEXRA Finance costs 201,441 89,065
FEWA Interest income (233,787) (110,657)
R A Realisation of deferred income (23,266) (12,384)
EEM\EWEEEMEME Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables (139) 1
&R H Depreciation and amortisation 688,950 561,195
BoBEqES Release of prepaid lease payments 12,952 12,869
PRiEGEE 2 ABRMD S IBST  Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses 36,532 74,962
WoRFE Write-down of inventories 15,253 5,890
PTG = R B ¥4 Share of results of associates (283) (445)
AHEERE ZREMA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (2,535) (5,302)
HE—RBE DRz m Gain on disposal of an associate 18 (36) -
HEME HERRBHE Loss on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 26,733 1,138
LEESEHF 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
BERERE working capital 1,412,845 1,177,943
FEEM Increase in inventories (115,060) (100,706)
JEMBR S R E b U 5K IBRL D Decrease in trade and other receivables (698,100) (179,350)
EHEREZERMERLIN  Increase in properties under development
for sale (161,435) (169,666)
AR F R A B FRIBIZ AN Increase in trade and other payables 354,498 152,752
REFEME 2 ILZSIEM Increase in deposits from pre-sale of
properties 100,766 438,784
PEIEU AL N Increase in deferred income 9,137 29,402
REMBRE Cash generated from operations 902,651 1,349,159
BN SR RIEDH Income taxes and withholding tax paid (181,938) (234,829)
REFHHBRETFH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 720,713 1,114,330
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE2014F1283181LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

20145 20134
B s AR¥ETR ARBT T
2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
REES INVESTING ACTIVITIES
MEZAREZFEER Entrusted loans to third parties (1,078,500) (1,383,728)
BEAHDERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (1,000,000) (77,105)
BEWE- T%%%&E%ﬁ Purchase of property, plant and equipment (635,218) (561,486)
e ERRITER Placement of pledged bank deposits (269,150) (138212)
YEMLES Payment for prepaid land lease (4,357) (168,388)
ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬂ\ﬁ/ ﬁF Purchase of intangible assets (1,254) (3,881)
F-FREZIER Repayment of entrusted loans from
third parties 1,133,500 1,358,728
BUH E Interest received 233,787 110,657
FREERRITER Proceeds from release of pledged bank
FT{S 3R deposits 190,325 108,962
HE— %H%%Q BIFTB3E  Proceeds from disposal of an associate 18 15,089 -
BEM B A REERR AR R Repayment from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 10,000 -
HEWE  HEE KR A FATIS R Proceeds from disposals of
property, plant and equipment 3,142 1,927
A RERERERA Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments 2,535 5,302
P& R R AR B Dividends received from associates 446 -
M *% ﬁfgﬁﬂﬂf\iﬁ Capital contribution to an associate - (15,000)
WEE—RHE AT Acquisition of a subsidiary 32 - (550,294)
REZEMARSFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (1,399,655) (1,312,518)
BMEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EEEHIE Proceeds from borrowings 2,846,240 1,124,450
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,722,280) (1,006,634)
BARAE Interest paid (196,550) (130,842)
ERRE Dividends paid (143,315) (219,428)
LRSSt g Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,535) (2,898)
BIR{TIEE Hﬁﬁx%% %8 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2,102) (9,892)
R R ST E Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 1,400 4,000
BMETBHE (FTA) RS FHE NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 780,858 (241,244)
ReRERRLEE NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
#m OR ) 28 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 101,916 (439,432)
FRNzHERERABESEE  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,243,296 1,682,728
FRZEERERBESEE  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR
gp represented by:
IRITHEBR IR S Bank balances and cash 1,345,212 1,243,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—maEs
REEEBERRAA ([AKRF])R2006%F
TRA2BRAEHETMKILAZHRREE
PR 2 &)+ H 3 #% =5 B8 A1 52 Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO. Box 2804, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands « K2 & B f& 19 B
2007F 12 A10B BEBBBARIAARD
AIER e

KRB AB—BIREERRA R EME QR
F BN FEI7 -
ARRREKBRAR (ABIAEE])E

ENFERE - DHRHEERLE SO TM
AR —8F R BRLE (TPVC])
Ko fgE i DA B Bt o pE SN AR B TRAE R EE A
REMA ([HEDREDERR-

ARBIEEE
BRI ER -

EWHNERIARER] —

FEVBBMRARRAIRENBLRFZI
EREBARE (TAREB) 25

HE2014F12A3BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution and sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone
and dichloromethane, polyvinyl chloride (‘PVC") and liquid alkali
and others. In addition, the Group is also engaged in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

069
Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



A B mARN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12A31BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2. BR#FITREET 2E5EA

BEIMREE2014F12831H LR
FEEMPERMEREEDNE
AR —EHRE

RAFE AEECERERUATHEERS
AEAEES ([EREHENEEE] )R
o E BRI 75 3R 5 A A (BRI IS i
Al BRI AR — R EE -

B B 75 ¥R o5 E A REERE
SE105% - BIFR A 75
T A28 )2
& st RIS 275R

(EFTA)

B &5 ERIE2R HESHEER
(EETA) TRAE

B &5 ERIFE6H  FLREE KA
(EFTA) TREWE

B gt ERIE5E TETANEER
(EETA) gt aiEa

B (BRMBRE #E
BEZ89)

— 2SR

P 7N 4R [ e P BB B 75 3R o5 R R OB BT I
REHAKEAFRECEEFE 2MBR
BERRE, IR ZEGE M BREAE
ZRBYEREATE -

REEEERLRF —ZT-NFFRH

Application of new and revised accounting
standards

Amendments to IFRSs and a new interpretation
that are mandatorily effective for the current year
ended 31 December 2014

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time in the
current year the following amendments and a new interpretation
to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

IFRIC — Int 21 Levies

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and the interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F 12318 EFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)
New and revised standards, interpretations and
amendments issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 —
2012 Cycle?
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 —
2013 Cycle!
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 -
2014 Cycle?
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts*
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IFRS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations?
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions!
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

REEEER QA

FE R # ] RARMERT 2 BT 2R
(%)

EEMERERNIET REEETE
Bl -BRERETE (A)

! 7201447 A1 B 82 14 A 2 G 2 HA R AR A -
AR -

2 7201447 A1 B 82 18 A 2 G 2 HA R A A -
RBELEHIERGIN IR B -

: 201651 1Bz &R FEEMER
AR RER -

‘ 7201641 A1 B 82 4 Rt 2 & 8 2 B B
B EERIB IS IRAR L AR -

> 201741 A1 B 2 & A 2 G 2 HA R A A
AR RER -

6 7201841 A1 B 82 18 FtA 2 & & HA R A A -
AR -

BB REEAFR €I A]
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Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exception. Earlier application is permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

N Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier
application permitted.

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier

application is permitted.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting. Another revision version
of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a "fair value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F 128318 EFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments
that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in future may
not have material impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12A31BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation”

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant and
equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for
amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

a) when the intangible assets is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible assets are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group uses the straight-
line method for depreciation and amortisation for its property, plant
and equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The directors
of the Company believe that the straight-line method is the most
appropriate method to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 will have a material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F 12318 EFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 27 “Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements”

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements

At cost

In accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (or IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for
entities that have not yet adopted IFRS 9), or

Using the equity method as described in IAS 28 “Investments
in associates and joint ventures”.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be an
investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall account
for the change from the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to amendments to IAS 27, there are consequential
amendments to IAS 28 to avoid a potential conflict with IFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements” and IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption

of International Financial Reporting Standards”.

The directors of the company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations

and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint

Venture”
Amendments to IAS 28:

076

The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that do
not constitute a business.

A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets that
constitute a business between an entity and its associate
or joint venture must be recognised in full in the investor's
financial statements.

A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should be
accounted for as a single transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations

and amendments issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint

Venture” (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 10:

An exception from the general requirement of full gain or
loss recognition has been introduced into IFRS 10 for the
loss control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with a associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method.

New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains or
losses resulting from those transactions are recognised in
the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement at fair
value of investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application

of these amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 will have a material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use
in 1AS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the carrying amounts of the non-
controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:
deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;
liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the "measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS
37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with |IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Specifically, revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statements of
financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where the current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for business combination.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as a operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments(including any lumpsum unfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the
specific area has expire during the period or will expire in the
near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

096



géﬁ-ﬁ&% ( mﬁ)
BREE (&)

RiREZRE (&/)
ANBERA BERFEREZH
B RGEELTT BHREFGEE
EZREETAERRINAENHEE
REmEKE -

fid — IR & B < BREME A ) E A W Bl & 28R -
AREE RN B MR -

rE

FEREWE B HRRAA HE A &35 % (E
RYBIE & DI AR © B A SR A hnig i kA B o
AR FEEFENGTHEEERME R

At TERA AN R E AT S E P AL TR RO RS

EFHERBR ZME

AEEBERTZRIVERFEERT
WETARBEE @ WIRRA KA #3357 )FE
FREETIR K ABRELANES MY
KRBERA - MERBERABIERERA
BRASE ST HRRENMEZEERE R
P MIMEL 2 EREHRA - FEEREER
BB TR A AR F R E -

AERFEERREBIER 2B Hk
A ER S R AR TR -

AEERNVERZATARSRIVEES X
S RAEEAREERMILIEN A EERBED
HER BFEERMEERENE UE
R 2R BRSO FREE
BA - MEREHE AN HERRBER
E{E 2 FERZRNIERARER -

fra B TSR M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12831HEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights (Continued)
sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for sale
in the ordinary course of business are included in current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the prepaid lease payments for land and development costs
for the properties. Development costs of properties comprise
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group's accounting policy and directly attributable costs incurred
during the development period. Cost of each unit in each phase of
development is determined using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change of intention to hold the property
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale instruments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its costs is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 90 days or 180 days, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12831HEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the effect of the
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade receivables
The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade receivables in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers and
the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
provision accordingly. The aggregate carrying value of trade
receivables at 31 December 2014, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB3,818,000 (2013: RMB6,169,000), is RMB1,782,733,000
(2013: RMB1,048,335,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Collectability of entrusted loans

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on entrusted
loans, the Group estimates the future cash flows of entrusted loans
for impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the entrusted loans’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise in future financial periods. The
aggregate carrying value of entrusted loans at 31 December 2014 is
RMB370,000,000 (2013: RMB425,000,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2014 is RMB4,456,865,000
(2013: RMB4,494,015,000). Further details are disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group's
management considers it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses or tax credit can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2014
is RMB159,473,000 (2013: RMB166,451,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2013 for a period of
two years till October 2015. Having checked the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company anticipate
that there is no material legal impediments would prevent the
Group from renewing its exploration rights provided that the
Group submits the relevant application documents in compliance
with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the relevant
PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company believe the Group will be able to renew the exploration
rights with the relevant government authority upon the expiry
of the exploration rights in October 2015 at insignificant cost. In
addition, the directors of the Company assess the impairment of
the exploration rights by estimating the recoverable amount of
the assets. The directors of the Company expected that the mines
are abundant with fluorspar resources. The Group has appointed
experts to assess the fluorspar resources and is in the process
of preparing an independent exploration report to reasonably
ascertain the reserve. If there is any material impediments which
would prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights
or obtaining the mining right certificates, impairment loss may
be recognised. The carrying amount of exploration rights at 31
December 2014 is RMB80,000,000 (2013: RMB80,000,000) and there
was no impairment recognised during both years. Further details
are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of goodwill is RMB85,894,000 (2013:
RMB85,894,000) and no impairment loss was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 28, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
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Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

SRMIANEE (a) Categories of financial instruments
20145 20134F
ARET T ARET T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEMEE Financial assets
ER & EW G IE Loans and receivables (including
(BEEERBRITER pledged bank deposits,
RITEHRNMEE) bank balances and cash) 3,373,487 2,877,909
AHERE Available-for-sale investments 1,195,283 195,283
4,568,770 3,073,192
EEEE Financial liabilities
B SH R AR Amortised cost 4,531,880 3,696,823

MBEREEBFERBER

AEENT2RITABBRKER
REMEWHIE - ZEER  2EMIR
TER RITEHREERS  BNERFR R
HtENRBENMEE HESRTA
MFBEREMERE HFERTA
MRERAREET SRR (BEER
EMZER) EERREEBEER
B2 o IR L S5 L B O R SR B T 3 o AR
SEEEEASEERERNHERR
HEHE - DARE LR KB DA B RO 1T 8

B

(b)

109

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

(%) policies (Continued)
iz E Market risks
G EEmEE () Currency risk
FENEBARMNINEER B A The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RE MRZHIHAARE RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
Hohm  AEEBEINEF R However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
Bk s R EEREIMIEREE dollar “US$") were received when the Group earned
1 B3 N 354 O JIE A~ RIE A 25 WS B revenue from overseas customers and when settling
INE(EZERZET([ZEL])) - payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.
REBW S FT TS A BORE The Group does not have any hedging policy to
BEETINE R F T EE SR manage the risk arising from foreign currency
B2 o R AR B INE RS - A transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
SEBEEE BT AR INER R foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
ZHE - BERERIBWZERE foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
B SNEE H A R o into account its foreign currencies payment schedule
in the near future.
RREBH - AEERINERTE The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
BEREBAGENEREBENT denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:
BE =R
Assets Liabilities
20144 2013%F 20144 20134
ARTFR ARBTT AR%¥®TR ARETT
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT uss 140,209 178,664 252,154 112,250
REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR 110
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

()

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against USS$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB8,393,000 higher/lower (2013: RMB4,981,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of USS denominated bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables and
USS$ denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for
details of these borrowings) and entrusted loans. At
31 December 2014, 40% (2013: 35%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 28 for details of
these borrowings).

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate, Hang Seng
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate ("LIBOR") arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2013: 10
and 25 basis points) increase or decrease is used
which represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates
risk on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10
basis points (2013: 10 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would increase/decrease by RMB1,465,000 (2013:
RMB1,042,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group's exposure
to interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings,
if interest rates had been 25 basis points (2013: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would decrease/increase by
RMB3,662,000 (2013: RMB2,605,000), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

113

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, entrusted loans and trade and other
receivables (except for prepayments), represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The objective of the Group's measures to manage
credit risk is to control potential exposure to recoverability
problem. Most of the Group's cash and cash equivalents
are held in major financial institutions in the PRC, which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies to ensure the entrusted loans are
made to entities with an appropriate credit history and the
Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial strength
of them as well as considering prior dealing history with
them. Generally, the entities are granted loans with maturity
of one year. The Group’s management continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and the
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flow discounted at an effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise (please see note 25 for details). In addition, before
accepting any new debtor, the Group conducts research on
the creditworthiness of the new debtor and assesses the
potential debtor’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
debtor. The Group offers various settlement terms which
vary depending on the size of contract, credibility and
reputation of the debtor. Loans balances are not past due or
impaired at the end of reporting period. The directors of the
Company continuously evaluate the creditworthiness of the
independent third parties and may, on a case by case basis,
extend the repayment date on mutual agreement.

The balances of entrusted loans represent loans to several
independent third parties. Included in the entrusted loan of
RMB?75,000,000 and RMB60,000,000 (2013: RMB150,000,000
and RMB117,000,000) which maturity dates were September
2014 and October 2014 (2013: October 2013 and November
2013), respectively, had been extended one more year during
the year ended 31 December 2014 after evaluation of the
payment history and the credit-worthiness of the debtor.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of entrusted
loans and considers the entrusted loans that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

115

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB3,777,680,000 (2013:
RMB4,659,700,000). Details of which are set out in note 28.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

FERRE  M2014F128
METHHE EAR 123EA MERAEIE 1F 555 REEE NBNREE
% AREBTT AR¥TR ARETR AR%Tn ARETr AR¥TR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 1-3 3 months Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5years cash flows 2014
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

20145128318 31 December 2014
ENEFREMENTE  Trade and other payables 1,255,355 230,732 108,798 - 1,594,885 1,594,885

BE Borrowings

-8 - fixed rates 6.19 44,055 490,679 334,382 551,489 1,420,605 1,323,500
) - variable rates 6.48 8,564 48,821 560,806 1,441,155 2,059,346 1,911,604
374,531 1,419,962 933,489 2,007,324 4,735,306 4,490,459
AERRE K045 12A
TR = 1EAR IBREA EARE 1FESE TELE NBNEAG
% AREFTL  AR®TR  AR%TR  ARETRT ARETL  ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 1-3 3 months Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2014
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20135128318 31 December 2013
ENEZREMENRE  Trade and other payables - 941,408 485204 17647 - 1,544,259 1,544,259

BE Borrowings

-E8 - fixed rates 6.16 3954 26486 183812 600,253 814,505 763,250
—%E - variable rates 645 154,386 49,968 478609 806,608 1489571 1389314
1,099,748 561,658 780,068 1406861 3,848,335 3696823

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR
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Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
of products and property development. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of products
and property development. This is the basis upon which the Group
is organised.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows:
(i) Refrigerants;

(i) Polymers;

(i) Organic silicone;

(iv)  Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

(v)  Property development - development of residential
properties at Shandong Province, the PRC.

(vi)  Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-products
of refrigerants segment, polymers segment, organic silicone
segment and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali
segment.
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3L yakvi | P W2 = . .
6. WmKoEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
N N e
DER R R EE Segment revenues and results
EEREVREEDHTNREREED The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
DT e reportable and operating segment.
20144 2014
ZRRE
2RH BATHR ERE PVCR NEEE  2HRANEE RfEH H b
ARETR ARET 7 AV ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETT AREFR ARET T
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone liquid alkali development total operations Eliminations Total
RMB000 RB000 RB00 AMB0000 AMB 000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
HiME Bxternalsales 2062621 2152054 1509324 1190536 525,087 7439622 160,074 - 7,599,696
AEBHE Inerseqment ses 116,126 - 479 4565 - 1175461 512,366 (1687827 -
ha-8ha Tota revenue - seqment evenue 3,208,747 2,152,054 1514114 1,195,081 525,087 8,615,083 672440 (1,687,827) 7,599,696
LS SEGUENT RESULTS 37,30 364213 (31,805 6294 145,55 908,537 78 - 29321
RARBERR Unallocated corporate expenses (39,668)
RAREMMA Unalloated other income 253
BANK Finance costs (201,441)
fiEBERREE Share ofresults of asociates pis)
RiEE Proft before tax 691,030

RESEBRAR —Z-NFER 118
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hmk o ESER (&)

HE2014F 12838 LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
TR EREE (&) Segment revenues and results (Continued)
2013%F 2013
it L3
HRH BT E#E  CREE NERR  2RAVEE A% bt Eh)
ARETT  ARETRT  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETRT  ARETR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone liquidalkeli ~ development total operations Eliminations Total
RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RMB0000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RMB000
HoaE Exteral sales 1919055 2083751 1515439 1088141 - 6576386 26428 - 6782814
AHRREE Inter-segment sales 1004835 - 5440 55473 - 1,065,748 398036 (1463,804) -
@l - s HkE Total revenue - segment revenue 2923890 2053751 1520879 1143614 - 7642134 604484 (1463,804) 6782814
PRER SEGMENT RESULTS 74013 553000 TAR45 4015 (15026) 690647 313 - 74770
FARLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (79951)
ROBEBIA Unallocated other income 5302
BERL Finance costs (89,069)
Gl A-UNGES | Share of results of associates 4
BBAIRA Profit before tax 561,501
SR MEE D BRI EIER M 3T A The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
REEGTHEMAR - HEEEIBELES segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as

Be R oD Be AU A« R RFTEBURA - EEH
B PTEEE AR HENREKAT &5
ERRIEEAE ot T M AREE R A 2B B

described in note 3. Segment results represent the results of each

segment without allocation of unallocated other income, central

administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of result of associates

FERAERRRTHOEN - HREER
BENDBERLIEARLBREALR
ERPERERRTHERBHLE  HIL M2
FIZ AR

DEEMHEIRRITmEME -

and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. No segment information on assets
and liabilities is presented as such information is not reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. WmKkoEER (&)

 LETEE

FHRRERDBEZHLBIBREIRE
Fryk =&

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by

products from external customers

201445 20134F

ARBT AR T T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

ZH— SRR HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 1,064,832 857,855
P4 2 %2 (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 92,435 167,497
A& LKT(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 71,092 221,818
R439A R439A 5 14
R410a R410a 264,628 217314
R413A R413A 37,913 39,333
R142b R142b 32,203 32,323
R152a R152a 95,350 4,455
R32 R32 106,576 72,784
Efh Others 297,587 305,662
2,062,621 1,919,055

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from polymers segment by

EFHWK: products from external customers
20145 20135
AR®T R AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
B IS LK (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,147,855 1,183,844
JN BRI (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 280,537 244812
NIRRT b Perfluorocyclobutane 46,568 36,572
2 BB LANIE(FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 243,421 238,157
B R & LM% (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 239,341 185,515
FEAR B (FKV) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 80,357 74,758
R % 2 1% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 21,253 30998
H A Others 92,722 59,095
2,152,054 2,053,751
EHRRERIEZERESBREIINKE Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by

FrkzER products from external customers
20144 20134
AR®T AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC (ZHREMEEEIRE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 381,883 524,976
107815 B 107 Silicone Rubber 475,402 363,131
B Raw Vulcanizate 155,511 156,840
D3(ANFER=-ERLR) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) 7,191 12,343
B IR B Gross Rubber 58,742 51,615
RERRE Gaseous Silica 74,668 86,558
DMC7K R ) DMC Hydrolysate 70,422 126,706
—HRESHR Trimethylchlorosilane 29,127 65,047
REQ Sk Methyldichlorosilane 6,979 10,935
AR Ganister sand 24,696 30,880
A EDMC DMC Lineament 67,900 26,451
D4( \FREIRMAE A St ) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 33,332 1014
EAh Others 123,471 58,943
1,509,324 1,515,439
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HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. WmKoEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREREE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

FBERERSEZ-_SEF IR PVCRERRK Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

BAREFHNREER liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20145 20134
ARBT ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 600,153 566,578
—E8FR Dichloromethane 240,368 178,859
el ] Liquid alkali 350,015 342,704
1,190,536 1,088,141

FHRERIBZHMEE I BRE IR
EEHNWEER

Information about revenue from other operations segment by
products from external customers

20144 20134

ARBT T AREF T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

AHF (EEX B EE) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 12,091 7,621
Rk Ammonium Bifluoride 52,033 50,919
LEMHE Hydrofluoric Acid 25,474 22,391
RE Bromine 41,045 26616
Hth Others 29,431 98,881
160,074 206,428

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. WEkDEER (E) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EBXEEFEHR Information about major customers
HZE2014F 12 A31 B IEMEFE S FHER There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed over
BE —gP 2 lamhAREEAHEFEN0% 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two years
A Lo ended 31 December 2014.
i EER Geographical information
REERBINREP 2 W migE P i@ The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
(=R N location of customers is detailed below:
20145 20134
ARE TR ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
a3 PRC 5,937,784 5,266,217
T (BRARESN) Asia (except PRC)
-8B — Japan 358,929 363,919
— e — South Korea 260,211 242722
—ENE ~ India 39,292 19,500
— ¥ N3 - Singapore 31,525 18,007
—=H — Thailand 44,735 31,263
—fRRE e B R — United Arab Emirates 82,652 21,014
—EE e — Pakistan 21,018 19,032
—BRAE — Malaysia 22,822 19,393
—JEEE — Philippines 11,736 8,655
—#imE — Viet Nam 14,593 11,075
—+THH ~ Turkey 18,909 20,930
—H MBI — Other countries 120,004 74,142
INEF Subtotal 1,026,426 849,652
123
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HE2014F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

6. WmKoEBER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
HEER (4 Geographical information (Continued)
20144 20134
ARET T ARET T
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
EM America
—%H — United States of America 246,732 255,405
e il - Brazil 85,090 68,162
—H M BR — Other countries 7,983 6,634
INET Subtotal 339,805 330,201
BOM Europe
—BXF - Italy 145,542 161,221
— i — England 3,370 6,591
— kg — Russia 35,355 39,996
— = — Germany 25,942 34,569
— =B — France 10,487 6,928
—H MBI R — Other countries 16,030 26,308
INEE Subtotal 236,726 276,113
JEM Africa
—m3k -~ South Africa 15,953 14,858
—& & - Egypt 4,557 8,737
—EBHgs — Nigeria 15,509 10,251
—H iR — Other countries - 2,870
INET Subtotal 36,019 36,716
HEMER, & Other countries/regions 22,936 23,915
7,599,696 6,782,314

PAEARSREZ RS EEDMNTE -

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

WamkoHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
Hith o HE R Other segment information
—ERR ZRREEDD
HEH BATHA HHRE PVCR B NEHRS &8 LS @
AREFTR ARETFTR ARETR ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFTR ARETFTR
Reportable
and
Dichloromethane, Property operating
Organic PVCand development segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone Liquid Alkali total total operations Total
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000
20145 2014
nE HER Depreciation of property,

HENE plant and equipment 197,382 205,940 144,434 113928 563 662,247 15318 677,565
ENAERE Amortisation of intangible assets 337 10,705 126 201 - 11,369 16 11,385
(BE)EDERET  Revisal recognition of

HE impairment on trade receivables (166) 82 (55) - - (139) - (139)
ERIARRL Research and development

ENE costs recognised as

an expense 4,525 65414 1,926 1,017 - 72,882 516 73398
faks Wiite-down of inventories 9,746 2939 2,568 - - 15,253 - 15,253
HENE BER Loss (gain) on disposals of

HEBE (k) property, plant and

equipment 18,728 2,430 (14) 2,990 - 24,134 2,599 26,733
BEREA#S Release of prepaid lease

payments 2,99 5102 3,147 1,069 129 12441 N 12,952
2013% 2013
nE HER Depreciation of property,

HENE plant and equipment 200602 131773 115,187 57,546 415 525523 26,964 552487

BREERH Amortisation of intangible

assets 179 8291 165 55 - 8690 18 8,708
EARKENAE Recognition of impairment

on trade receivables - 11 - - - m - 11
ERRARTZ Research and development

HERAZHA costs recognised as

an expense 7858 58220 2084 3116 - 278 390 71,668
HAFE Wiite-down of inventories 4187 - 293 1292 - 57 118 5890
HENE BE Loss on disposals of property,

REEEE plant and equipment 262 666 14 59 - 1131 7 1,138
BEREAES Release of prepaid lease

payments 3,566 3984 2672 697 1837 12,756 13 12869
125
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HE2014F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

7. Hflg A

7. Other income

20145 20134
AR®T R AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
I 47 B Government grants
—HEAYEEEH (iFa) — related to expense items (Note a) 10,521 12,576
—HEEFR (M:E29) — related to assets (note 29) 23,266 12,384
H|ITIHF A E WA Bank deposits interest income 10,484 13,741
ZAEFF B WA Interest income on entrusted loans 94,131 77,701
JE Uk =45 F B A Interest income on bills receivables 129,172 19,215
AHEEREZRBEBA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 2,535 5,302
BB E (MizEb) Compensation received (Note b) - 24,869
HE—REE QR 2 K& Gain on disposal of an associate
(PF&E18) (note 18) 36 -
HAh Others 20,356 12,398
290,501 178,186
Bt 3 Notes:
@ A = EAIER BB M X - fEE £ 2 (@  The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research activities

NIER AR -

which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

()

A EEIEEE2013F 12N A I EEREAE
B EE = F R BB RN COMIE B B
B HRETE (TEERERE G EATIE
THER) -

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH
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The amount represented compensation received from an independent third
party during the year ended 31 December 2013 on CDM Project due to its
failure to fulfil its obligation as stated in the agreement entered into by the
Group with the independent third party.
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HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

8. MEKA 8. Finance costs
20145 20134
ARBT ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME: Interest on:
ARAFAEEBEEREZIRITEFR  Bankloans wholly repayable
within five years 202,025 112,597
ERAFRNERZHEMEER Other borrowings repayable
within five years 4,286 18,400
EE KA 4aRE Total borrowing costs 206,311 130,997
WEREPFEYERTERSTE  Less: amounts capitalised for properties
under development for sale - (26,928)
M HERBERTERNESRE amounts capitalised for property,
plant and equipment (4,870) (15,004)
201,441 89,0065
FABTERZEEXRTIN—RIEERE Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
TR HEEREERI IR INETIEE borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted average
AL L G F649% (20135 1 6.67% ) 5T E © capitalisation rate of 6.49% (2013: 6.67%) per annum to expenditure

on qualifying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

9. FRf8HiBIX 9. Income tax expense
20144 20134
AR®T AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
PR ERER ([ZEMEFR])  PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
—BHEIFE — Current year 149,647 164,189
—BEFE (BETR)BEREME - (Under) over provision in prior years 5,609 (7,705)
— T HIEER ([T ER]) — Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") 8,587 -
163,843 156,484
R TE X M (FEE20) Deferred tax charge (note 20)
— R B [ B A R A 2R Fl) 2 — withholding tax for distributable
AT profits of PRC subsidiaries 15,371 13,977
—H A - others 14,820 (46,186)
30,191 (32,209)
FrieHimL B Total income tax expense 194,034 124,275

REEBEBRAR —Z-NFFR 128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

9. FRBHBExX (&) 9. Income tax expense (Continued)
AEEHBERZBER REMEGEE2EK The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
ABREROBRB AT FIMEERAT tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

20145 20134
ARBT AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
B A5 B g A Profit before tax 691,030 561,501
LA25%1E TS LB KT H Y Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
HIAH (Ff5Ea) of 25% (Note a) (172,757) (140,375)
REBEMERGTENREN Income tax on concessionary rate 11,670 14277
A RBWARNF IR E Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose 1,154 1,271
Frib B & AR EENB AT E Tax effect of share of result of associates 71 111
TAH AT OB BT E Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose (11,526) (13,473)
RERBMEEBEEORBEZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (16,728) (52,172)
PR LRI R R IBE B R Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
MIEF & previously not recognised 12,123 51,326
BEAFE (BETR) BREEE Under (over) provision in respect
of prior years (5,609) 7,705
Hh [ Bt B8 8 B AT 3 R &2 A A Deferred tax on distributable earnings
EFET IR (PH5ED) of PRC subsidiaries (Note b) (15,371) (13,977)
e R R BER AT HIR & iy Z 5 Tax effect of deductible temporary
MIEEE differences previously not recognised 10,174 21,291
TR ER (P 3EC) LAT (Note ¢) (8,587) -
THIREFNR BT E Tax effect of LAT 2,147 -
H Others (795) (259)
AEFRIBHAEZ Tax expense for the year (194,034) (124,275)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

9. FIEHAEX (&)

B aE -

@  2SBEREEMESHREEARANEIZMNBEA
BIILERRECTARAR (REET]) X
RESDFMHAERAR((RESDFI) -
WRREEREMMERAR (REAH
B WRREREMHERAR ([RER
EDRIWRREBHEXARAR ([BHE
%) EABRAPTIS BBE o ILREE A KL
BRAF ([EEMA]) PSR R15%:
DEEEBRERHRMEEER-

) REMESEERBEEERHAHLTRT
(200885 15% X 14 - P B E §8 52008571 A1 H iR
FTEA SRR IR E  BRE MR
BEEMINEDEBEIE) F3IR7IEU K
OINERECEMIECERSRAE M
AI) SBOUERIRTE RN ERER - HEB AR
RO IRBFEELEFHIBE EAARE15371,000
7T (20134 : AR¥513977,0007T) B 5t AFEAIE

Ko
fm

©  LEETERLMEBESTER0%E60%
) S AR AR - B3 3 6 PRTAS SRIEUR AT 4
B BET I BENR AR EE
el

EIER B FIF KT FE20 ©

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant income
tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co,, Ltd. (‘Dongyue Chemicals”),
Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co.,, Ltd. ("Dongyue Polymers”), Shandong
Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd ("Dongyue Organosilicon”),
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co,, Ltd. (‘Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”)
and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co,, Ltd (“Union Property”) which
are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The income tax rate of Shandong
Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd. ("Huaxia Shenzhou”) is 15% as it
obtained the qualification as a high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject
to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91
of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax
liability of 15,371,000 (2013: RMB13,977,000) on the undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries has been charged to profit or loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 20.
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iR e B TS AR M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

10. Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year
FRREMNEEEBABEE R (AT Profit and total comprehensive income for the year has been
bl &1 - arrived at after charging (crediting) the following items:
20145 20134
AR®T T ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
HHEEER Short-term employee benefits 407,878 308,719
BIBIEAL (Pi5Ea) Discretionary bonus (Note a) 4,970 379
RRAE A Post-employment benefits 79,169 82,460
MRAEREE 2 AR XA B X Fquity-settled share-based payment
expense 36,532 74,962
Hith 8 T&F Other staff welfare 28,885 25,084
BETITRA (D) Total staff costs (Note b) 557,343 491,604
EERBAXT 2 FEKAE Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 5,772,058 5,143,767
M S RERENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 677,565 552,487
A ESE (FFAEERE) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 11,385 8,708
1% ELRT BN & Auditor's remuneration 3,215 3,063
X (W) BEEE Net foreign exchange (gains) losses (2,745) 8,205
e 5R FE UL BR OB B Recognition of impairment
on trade receivables (139) 111
BERRAEMST 2T RFAERZA  Research and development costs
recognised as an expense 73,398 71,668
WRFE (FTAEERA) Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales) 15,253 5,890
BEENHES Release of prepaid lease payments 12,952 12,869
HEMF SRR EEE Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 26,733 1,138

M AERTRABREESMHE -

Notes: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

ERENWBEA A ARE,073,0007T The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB11,073,000 (2013:

(20134 : AR ¥57,985,0007T) °

RMB7,985,000).
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H 22014F12831

BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

M. BEERFETHRAEEE

M10% (2013F 102 EEREFEITHRAE
AR S ESFE T

.Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2013: 10)

directors and the chief executive were as follows:

0145
2014
REGE
RERL B HRHRA
ne #e (W) sHEfR X At it
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR
Equity-settled
Pension share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary  bonus (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiEs Executive Directors
RRRLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 4906 - 3439 - 14,489
BERE M. Fu Kan 14 - - - - - 144
UEFRE Mr. Liu Chuanoj 144 6,000 4901 - 3490 - 14535
ERRLE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 1,266 5 1,293 2 5110
RERE Mr. W Tao L - - - - - 14
FRAL Wr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 5 - 1%
BUHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRE%E M1 Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 250 - - - - - 250
FEREE M Yue Run Dong 158 - - - - - 158
FRELE M. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed
(Rom4Es f14B on 14 August 2014)
EZfE) 60 - - - - - 60
v r Liu Yi resigned on
(R04EBAI4BEM) 14 August 2014) - - - - - - -
1,332 14,400 1,073 5 8,274 2 35,086

RESEERAR

“E-NEFR
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HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

(#&) emoluments (Continued)
03F
2013
RigwE
mEEL &E URGIR
ik e (M) StEIf B i Eh
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Equity-settled
Pension share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary bonus (Note) ~ contributions expense benefits Total
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO000
Yi7Es Executive Directors
FRELE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 3405 - 6982 - 16,531
eV Mr. Fu Kiwan 144 - - - - - 144
AEARE M. Liu Chuangj 144 6,000 3355 - 7087 - 16,586
ERRLE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 1,125 4 2605 2 6,400
RELE
(B33 fu A M. W Tao (appointed on
BZfE) 21 March 2013) 108 - - - - - 108
BpEft M. Yan Jianhua (resigned on
(R03EIANERE) 20 March 203 % 100 - - - - 136
FRAE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 105 - 249
BukufEs Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRB%E Mr Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 1 - - - - - s
ey M Liu Yi {resigned on
(R014F8RI4BER) 14 August 2014) 144 - - - - - 144
EBERAE Mr Yue Run Dong 144 - - - - - 144
1397 14500 7,985 4 16,799 2 40,687

RIERFETRARBITHAE L3
BOHHEEEERTRARREHREDN
e

FR AEETERNEERAEREFALT
TR ABEBEENBAEERIEAINA
AEBMES BB EE - MEXEITHA
BT E B REFHZ2014F 128318 1L
& E R TN

MiaE IS TEAL DRI EEMEARRMEE

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2014.

Note:  Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of
the directors.
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HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

12. EEF

AEEBLRARERHFALET =4

F ZRIRARAEST HFMENLEX
BYEEN R B EE - R (2013F : M&) &

12. Employees’ emoluments

(2013

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2013: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 11 above. The emoluments of the

BEATHIFMAT - remaining two (2013: two) individuals were as follows:
201445 20134F
AR%ETR ARBEF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 5,902 4856
RORET IR Pension scheme contributions 5 6
PR E 2 DARR 0 S2 7 7 2 Fquity-settled share-based payment
expense 1,552 3,150
7,459 8,012
EEHMN FLATAER Their emoluments were within the following bands:
20145 20134F
2014 2013
== 4= No. of employees
3,000,0017% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
4,000,001 7T 25,000,000 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
5,000,0017%8 7T 26,000,000/ JT HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 1

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

13. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2014F 20134
F +
2014 2013
‘000 ‘000
HERERNREERFE B Earnings for the year attributable to
KREZARRNE B ANELBF) owners of the Company for the
(AR®) purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share (RMB) 483,276 465,898
MERERREERN S Weighted average number of ordinary
TR bR 9B shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,118,246 2,119,960

ARARARE I HMARITEERENITEES
R I HE - EF E & Z= 201445 %2013
FRANHIEFEMNTRETRFIR &R
BAEEREETE

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 does not assume the exercise of all
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise prices
of those options are higher than the average market price of the
shares.

st 14. Dividends
20144 20134
AR®T R ARETTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
ENT IR B
FRERNEOBE . e Dividends paid during the year:
2013F KA - BRRO0SEITL 1013 final dividend: HK$0.085
(20134F : 20 2F REARR B (2013: 2012 final dividend: HK$0.13)
0138 T) per share per share 143,315 219,428

HZE2014F12831BILtFE EZEE R
#190,635,0007% 7T ( & §%0.097% 7T (2013
F:0.08587w) ) 2 RKEKRE (20134
180,044,000/ 7T, ) 48 E P A K 150,392,0007T
(20134 + A R#143,315,0007T) * MBI
BAE FEBREAE-

A final dividend of HK$0.09 (2013: HK$0.085)per share, amounting
to HK$190,635,000 (2013: HK$180,044,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2014, equivalent to RMB150,392,000 (2013:
RMB143,315,000) has been proposed by the directors and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.
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15. Y% B RFRE

15. Property, plant and equipment

BF HBERRE AE BAREE EEIR @t
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARE®TRT ARETRT ARETR
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
D% CoST
#0131 B 1H At 1 January 2013 1,184,302 4,989,665 40,680 265,001 183,986 6,663,634
B Additions 30,900 36,699 2,158 19,045 454,836 543,638
WE—RMNBLRREA Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary
(B5E32) (note 32) 61,138 312,171 1658 3522 599 384,485
R Transfer 81,608 354,645 120 62,663 (499,036) -
B8 Eliminated on disposals (1,260) (5,600) (1,207) (358) - (8425)
#2013 12A31H At 31 December 2013 1,356,688 5,687,580 43409 349,873 145782 7,583,332
RE Additions 51,762 191,079 1977 38895 386,577 670,290
B Transfer 122,561 343,140 520 2,721 (468,942) -
T EEA 8 Eliminated on disposals (1057) (65,490) (1088) (1,773) - (69,408)
R2014812A318 At 31 December 2014 1,529,954 6,156,309 44818 389716 63417 8184214
ZEtHE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
#0131 A1H At 1 January 2013 258,280 2,094,526 22043 167341 - 2,542,190
KEERY Charge for the year 63,365 446,963 6,552 35,607 - 552487
& Eliminated on disposals (364) (3788) (820) (388) - (5,360)
#2013 12A31H At 31 December 2013 321,281 2,537,701 27,775 202,560 - 3,089,317
REERY Charge for the year 72462 553,031 7,208 44,864 - 677,565
A 8 Eliminated on disposals (24) (36,79) (1,047) (1,666) - (39,533)
R2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 393,719 3,053,936 33936 245,758 - 3,727,349
REE CARRYING VALUES
#2014%512A31H At 31 December 2014 1,136,235 3102373 10,882 143958 63417 4,456,865
R2013E12A31H At 31 December 2013 1,035,407 3,149,879 15,634 147313 145782 4494015

RESBEERAR

—E-NEER
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HAREBEEFEEZE REFERARSE
165,547,0007C (20139128318 : AR ¥
146,262,0007C ) °
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®

gF 20%F =X H Af

(B EHEA%E)
Hes & 5-104F
B 54F

BMEEE 5

AEEBEIFERAED 5 AAR329,000
JC (20135 : ) R AR #175,235,0007T
(20134 : A R #491,900,0007T ) K18 7 - #
BREE AREERITERREMERE
o

BFUNPE LM - RREFHEERA -

iR e BT IS R M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB165,547,000 (31 December 2013: RMB146,262,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of RMB9,329,000 (2013: nil) and 175,235,000 (2013:
RMB491,900,000) respectively, to secure bank loans and other loans
of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.
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16. EFHEE 16. Prepaid lease payments

AREENENES AREFMENIWTWOT The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

20145 20134
AR%TF ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
BHEBNMMENDIT Analysed for reporting purpose as:
LUNNE
—BNEfER > — Current portion 13,441 15,272
—JERNHAER — Non-current portion 482,254 562,117
495,695 577,389
ZEFIER TR AR 0E50F R E i E The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
- in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.
AEBEDHFREBE AR ®64939,0007T The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
WiENEES AASEMNRITEEMER carrying amount of RMB64,939,000 to secure bank and other loans
EHEHR (013F  AEMEREFARKE (2013: RMB66,794,000 for other loans) of the Group.
66,794,0007T ) °
REZE2014F 128318 LFE  AEBHE During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group transferred
A N R 73,466,000 (2013F  F) Bz an amount of RMB73,466,000 (2013: nil) representing one parcel of
REPBEILREEEa— BT inEAELE lands located in Huantai Shandong, the PRC to properties under

Rz (M23) - development for sale (note 23).
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17. B EE 17. Intangible assets
BEEHEM B4 RIERE @at
ARETT AREBFT AREBFT ARBT T
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[N CosT
20131818 At 1 January 2013 25,051 % 80,000 105,147
NE Additions 3,881 - - 3,881
Ui BE — KT B 2 A% Acquired on acquisition of
A (PI5E32) a subsidiary (note 32) 99,580 13 - 99,593
M2013F 128311 At 31 December 2013 128512 109 80,000 208,621
NE Additions - 1,254 - 1,254
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 128512 1,363 80,000 209,875
e AMORTISATION
M2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 20,636 36 - 20,672
KEERY Charge for the year 8,692 16 - 8,708
720135128318 At 31 December 2013 29,328 52 - 29,380
REERY Charge for the year 11,225 160 - 11,385
M2014F 128310 At 31 December 2014 40,553 212 - 40,765
IRTEE CARRYING VALUES
720145128318 At 31 December 2014 87,959 1151 80,000 169,110
720135128318 At 31 December 2013 99,184 57 80,000 179,241
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17

CEBREEE (&)

AEBMEEEEORNFE=TEE

EERMAERSIFRTAEEBEENA
ERFEH - WiREAED BIRSFE10F &3
FESFHIH-

FR20124F - AR E LA E A R 180,000,000
TRAE=ZFREFBEASTE 88 R M @R
KRB - A AR ESTBABSNEAER
B (BARTEERABEBNEZRM
B o WIS G AN B RS A S A K
ARBEBETNaEELnERHEE-

FIERER 2013108 B 5 - IR G2 R B
RERBEEOBRERE RAZBRNEETE
EHENEREE  AEER A ERMIFEERK
Hio 2013107 AEBE RIS R IE RS
BEMFLE2015F10A »

REZ2013F12A31B EFE - AEEBIE
MERFEERERFEE -RNEE20145F
NAJNALESE EREEAMEAEARE
40,660,0007T (20134 : A R #40,660,0007T )
BIESS 2 RS G E M ETT - B BiRWmE
TEHAR 2015 FIEAIE H - ALt - R ARFE
ETEHREREE K R20165FHUF -

REEBARAR —ZT-NEFR

17. Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant business
of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable the Group
to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar resources at a
reasonable cost.

The exploration rights expired in October 2013. According to
the regulations on exploration and mining rights in the PRC, the
Group can extend the exploration rights as long as the survey is in
process and the application fee is submitted. In October 2013, the
Group extended the exploration rights for a period of two years till
October 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group appointed
experts to assess the fluorspar resources reserve. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the expert's assessment of reserve
for one mine with a carrying amount of RMB40,660,000 (2013:
RMB40,660,000) is in progress. The independent exploration report
is expected to be issued by end of 2015. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company expected that the mining right certificate will be
obtained in 2016.
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2 S O ERR R ERIERERN 20154F 10 A J&E m B
AEEE ZEBRERGFTDEREEE
TEER -
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R #80,000,0007T (20134 : A R 880,000,000
JT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

17. Intangible assets (Continued)

In addition, the exploration work of the expert for another mine
with a carrying amount of RMB39,340,000 at 31 December 2014
(2013: RMB39,340,000) has been suspended because of disputes
with local shepherds. The relevant government authority in Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region is helping the Group to resolve the
issue with the local shepherds and from the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the issue will be resolved and the exploration
will recommence in second quarter in 2016. The independent
exploration report is expected to be issued in 2017. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company expected that the mining right certificate
will be obtained by the end of 2017. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount of the mine has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period from 2018 (the first year of mining)
and a discount rate of 16.6%. For the value in use calculation, it is
assumed that the issue with the shepherds can be resolved and
the exploration right can be renewed upon expiry in October 2015.
Such assumptions and estimations are based on management’s
expectations.

If there is any material impediments which would prevent the
Group from renewing its exploration rights or obtaining the
mining rights certificates, impairment loss may be recognised. The
carrying amount of exploration rights at 31 December 2014 was
RMB80,000,000 (2013: RMB80,000,000).

18. Interests in associates

20145 20134
AR T ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

RARRIE LT E QRN Cost of investments in associates unlisted
A KR in the PRC 1,539 16,470

FEMR BB 12 % F - 0Bk Share of post-acquisition profits,

B B net of dividends received 283 568
1,822 17,038
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18. REFE N RN ER (&)

20144 K20134F12 318 » REE B E N

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2014 and

RIMEEIRMT - 2013 are as follows:
TEEX iR AEEEEH
EREE £BEBKR  HIEXR oL R &R HERESR FEEMEREELS FEXH
Principal
Form of business  Country of place of Class of Registered capital held  Proportion of voting rights  Principal
Name of entity structure establishment operation  share held by the Group held by the Group activity
20145 20135 20145 20135
2014 2013 2014 2013
RELFREFMHER BRRA e il afiEs 49% 49% 40% 0% HERHER
BRAF ([ARE]) (WaFa)  (BiEa) RERRL
T R A
Chifeng North Dongyue New Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 40% 40%  Production and
Material Development Co, Ltd. company capital (Note a) (Note a) sales of
("North Dongyue”) fluorogypsum
HBEEEREREEEERAR  BROF HE HE Bk - 3333% - 3333  RIERE
([EERE]) (MEEb)
Zibo Qilu Equity Investment Co, Ltd  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered - 33.33% - 3333%  Equity
(Qilu Investment) company capital (Note b) Investment
B3 Notes:

@) 2011828188 AR AIRIMIB A RIAST &R
EEBENTARARE—ZBIE=H:]
S s AR T B o AR M A S AL 5 R
ETEEATE  AREGRILBZ A RIALE
ERMANEZTZARAEESTHME -

()  F2013F28158 AR AINBA A RELTHE
—BBUE=FEIMBE R ERIRE H
SEE AR B A R H50,000,0007T © 7 & 220134
NANAEIEFE  BBIZREEAR45000000
TRFMEARE M EPAREETEARE
15,000,0007T © AN 58 B 45 5 75 & 1% & 33.33000% 42
R E ARY AR —REE R0 ER - 5
BICE B T A A A R B 5,000,0007T # B AR
SER2015F28198 2 BTS2 - NEBE T HEH
REEBRENANENTIER AEEKHE
75 B B 409%H0 AR AE - 1A 20138F12 A31 B E A%

ER BT MIFE33 o RIBE B A A

ZRAM WEEFESEIAREEEER

SEBLH e Bt 203F AKEDEEERE

U B 12 R TH5233 330 M A E -

i

HZE2014F 12838 IEFE - AEER—EZB
VEZEHNEHEREERIRE 2 E3333%% -
B E A AREE50890007T ' WHERIES AR
#536,0007T ©

REEBARAR —ZT-NEFR
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On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals
Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to establish North Dongyue. The Group is able to
exercise significant influence over North Dongyue because it has the power
to appoint two out of five directors of that company under the Articles of the
Association of that company.

On 15 February 2013, Dongyue Chemicals, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with an independent third party to establish
Qilu Investment with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, registered capital of Qilu Investment amounting
to RMB45,000,000 was paid, of which the Group contributed RMB15,000,000.
The Group held 33.33% equity interest in Qilu Investment and accounted for
the investment as interest in an associate. The remaining registered capital of
Qilu Investment amounting to RMB5,000,000 would be made by the Group
before 19 February 2015. Upon the Group completed its contractual capital
injection into Qilu Investment, the Group will hold 40% equity interest in
Qilu Investment. Details of the capital commitment at 31 December 2013
are set out in note 33. According to the Memorandum of Association of Qilu
Investment, the share of post-acquisition profits depends on the proportion
of actual capital contribution by investors. As a result, the Group's share of
post-acquisition profits of Qilu Investment was calculated on a 33.33% basis
in 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of its entire
33.33% equity interest in Qilu Investment to an independent third party at a
total consideration of RMB15,089,000 and recognised a gain of RMB36,000.
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18. REFE AR ER (&)

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

FIEHE AR RARRENZEFEMB All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method
MERARR - ARIBEBEBR I RS ERRERM in these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
BERBEHIMT - information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

tFRE North Dongyue
20144 20134
AR T ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 10,661 10,691
BB Total liabilities 6,943 6,638
BEFE Net assets 3,718 4,053
AEBEGEEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group 1,822 1,986
B E20145 HZE2013F
12831 L EE NANBLEE
ARET T AREETF T
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wes Revenue 9,257 10,186

B N E A AR Profit for the year attributable to

F g A owner of the associate 578 802
A& B FEAE R T Group's share of profit 283 393
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18. REFE N RN ER (&)

EtFRE

(ll%)

LB B ER S E RN E R

EEHE RN 4R G M IS IRR R -

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

North Dongyue (Continued)

AIEZ MR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

the consolidated financial statements:

the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

20144 20134
ARBT AR T T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT RENEEFE Net assets of North Dongyue 3,718 4,053
REBRIEFTRE Proportion of the Group's ownership
Fir 7B % b 1 interest in North Dongyue 49% 49%
REBRIE AR EREZN Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
REE North Dongyue 1,822 1,986
EERE Qilu Investment
20145 20134
AR® TR AR®BTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB E Total assets - 45,158
wmeE Total liabilities - _
BEFE Net assets - 45,158
REBEGEEEFEAE Net assets attributable to the Group - 15,052
REEEERRR —T-NFEER 144
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18. Interests in associates (Continued)

Qilu Investment (Continued)

HZE20145 HZE2013F

12B318 1L EE 128318 IEFE

ARET T ARETF T

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Wz Revenue - -
ik Y N L Profit for the year attributable to

F g A owner of the associate - 158

A& E e m F Group's share of profit - 52

AP HEREE RN E QR EEOR
H{EM SRR R M REK PR

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

20145 20134

AREF ARBTT

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

EELEMNEEFE Net assets of Qilu Investment - 45,158
REBRBEERE Proportion of the Group's ownership interest

FiT 7B #E 25 Lb 1l in Qilu Investment - 3333%

REBREBRERRH Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
REE Qilu Investment - 15,052
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19. IHHERE

19. Available-for-sale investments

20144 20134
AR®T R ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEETIRAES - EA A Unlisted equity securities, at cost
iR
— LR AR B R - Shandong Innovation Investment Co,, Ltd.
BRAR (MiFa) (Note a) 2,324 2,324
—EERIEERDEER ~ Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance
BRAE ([RIEE®R]) Co, Ltd. (“ZhangDian Huitong")
(PFf&Ea) (Note a) 66,703 66,703
— R BEELERE - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
EEHRAT Economic Investment Co.,, Ltd.
(I'SPOBE ) (Fif5EDb) ("SPOBE") (Note b) 126,256 126,256
—FRERAERER D — China MinSheng Investment Co,, Ltd.
BRAR ([FRE]) (“CMIC") (Note c)
(BzEc) 1,000,000 -
1,195,283 195,283

Eai3E EHIRERENILABEBORAR
B RBREHRERARERESE RE
EREAHENGHEREA AU ARAE
ERREXFEEETSENE

B & -

@ HEERAEPEEMKIHILAETE A%
BN ILRAIFTIRE BRER A A 59.9%8)
PEARREZE - R E2013F12A3B L EE - R
JEEBEREINE R A RM40,250,0007T + AN
B iR E ERA R AR {20136 1283188
10.71%3E A ZE 2014512831 H 8915% ©

(b) SPOBEA—MRHEHSFMKINLLEE
BEoREE201F12A3BIEFE AR A H
SPOBERT 37 72 B 13 3% -+ 3R #§20,000,0008% SPOBE
BX 15 - 42 (B £20,0000005 7T (HEER AR
126,256,0007C) ° FA20134F & 2014F 128318
7K A B #E 4520,000,0004% SPOBEAK 17 + 1 FH A% A<
5 H918.18% (20134 1 18.18% ) °

© R2014FsAOH AEBRBEFARK
1,000,000,000/% B 19 + 18 & I R 3220984 - 1%
& A AR E1,0000000007T » A RIE AR R B
VHAR FEREREREMEEEE -

REEBARAR —ZT-NEFR

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in
private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

(a) The entities are private entities that were incorporated in the PRC. The
Group holds 9.9% of the equity interest in Shandong Innovation Investment
Co., Ltd. During the year ended 31 December 2013, additional capital of
RMB40,250,000 was paid to ZhangDian Huitong and the Group's equity
interest in ZhangDian Huitong increased from 10.71% at 31 December 2013
to 15% at 31 December 2014.

(b) SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with SPOBE to subscribe 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE
at a total contribution of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB126,256,000). As
at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Company had 20,000,000 shares which
represents 18.18% (2013: 18.18%) equity interest in SPOBE.

© On 9 May 2014, the Group subscribed 1,000,000,000 shares in CMIC, which
represent 2% equity interest in CMIC, at a consideration of RMB1,000,000,000.
CMIC is a company established in the PRC and is principally engaged in
equity investment and assets management.
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20. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purpose:

20145 20134

ARET AREEF T

2014 2013

RMB'000 RMB'000

RIETRIEEE Deferred tax assets 159,473 166,451
ELEFRITEAE Deferred tax liabilities (57,302) (50,164)
102,171 116,287

AERFCHATBECHRAEE (BE) R

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)

HEghmT: recognised and movements thereon for the year:
WEaER
VES: &3
PENELE ESEN  EAEEN R&EH
THARER FERE Ei &R BRES HEfR  EARLAS HEER it @3t
Tax
credits on
acquisition
Government of qualified
Distributable Accrual for grants on property
profits of PRC  Deprecation employee  prepaid lease plant, and Capitalised
subsidiaries allowance benefits payments equipment interests Tax losses Others Total
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000
R3E1A1R At January 2013 (36056) 9673 64581 30033 266 (6559) 4408 7,260 73610
ERRSENR Dividend withholding tax paid 25165 - - - - - - - 25165
RIBRTER (B)FEA (K9 (Charge) credit recognised
in profit or loss (note 9) (13.977) 4957 (12378) 20864 (133) (19 34650 (1759) 32209
WE-ZWERA (33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) - (2599) 3 8572 - - - - (14697)
P03ENA3IE At31 December 2013 (24868) (11.362) 5492 59469 13 (6570) 39058 5501 116287
ERRSENR Dividend withholding tax paid 16075 - - - - - - - 16075
RBERZ (B )5A (B5F9)  (Charge) credit recognised in profit or loss
(note 9) (15371) 2908 (10,890) (16958) 17,367 1,45 (21,670) 13178 (30,191)
W14E12A318 At31 December 2014 (24,164) (8454 4403% 4511 17500 (5329) 17388 18679 102171
147

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



A B mARN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

20.

21.

EEBE ()

2014128318 - AEE A AEHEHAR K
i A B R 58 AR T TE B 18 A A R H6312,500,000
7C (20134 + A R #380,761,00070) - B HL &
fh A B A R #69,552,0007T (20134 : AR
156,233,00070 ) B B E HE SRR IE IR B B ©
BARTRERAEEERNERT G
GRIRARBAMEEEEN AL ER
BT AR E) A B IE B 18 A R 242,948,0007T
(20134F : A R#224,528,0007T ) 7R HE 3R AT
MEBEE - ABERAVEBBRLEEBEAR
#£216,314,0007T &2 A & #66,912,0007T * 5 5l
18 F20184F 2019 B HF (20135 : AR
126,942,0007T & A R #253,818,0007T #5 5 5]
20174 K 2018F B £) o

20. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB312,500,000 (2013: RMB380,761,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of RMB69,552,000 (2013: RMB156,233,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining unused tax
losses of RMB242,948,000 (2013: RMB224,528,000) as it is uncertain
whether taxable profit of the corresponding group entities will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB216,314,000
and RMB66,912,000 that will expire in 2018 and 2019 respectively
(2013: RMB126,942,000 and RMB253,818,000 that will expire in 2017
and 2018 respectively).

EES 21. Goodwill
20145 20134
AREFx ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
D% COST
M1 ATH At 1 January 1,354 1,354
EXgRE—RHMBLAF Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary
(Bf5E32) (note 32) 84,540 84,540
»12A318 At 31 December 85,894 85,894

BHETTRBEAIR - A R #84,540,0007T (2013
F . AR #84,540,0007T ) & A K #1,354,000
7T (20134 : AR ¥E1,35400070) 2 FHEE o
R BE T AR 2R & = A B AL - BIRR SR AP =B
BRE: an MRS EMEES RES
BloHmReREEEBRAR ([REHE
¥ | REZE2014F12831BILEFE  AEE
EREREWALREMEERE-

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB84,540,000
(2013: RMB84,540,000) and RMB1,354,000 (2013: RMB1,354,000)
have been allocated to two cash generating units (CGUs)
representing two PRC subsidiaries, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd ("Dongyue
Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
December 2014, management of the Group determines that there
is no impairment of goodwill.
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21.

22.

EE (&)
EEHA

FEBE AR WO 2RI RIEE B EER
BET -FAENREEREECHENTFY
M EE AR EIRE MR X 1660%:T
B AFHUENR SR ERMA%NIZEE
RERHAEH - ZIEREDERABITRIERTE
A BTBBEBITENTFIRERE -
EREEAENEBIERRVE (B
BEHEEMENEZEAN) RS REMAF
B 2 DEREEBANBERRE
LEBEBHMSEREBBNTEN - EEEMR
5 ZERJAEAELROEAE{IT
SEYHFEEMANAKREERBE DK
R

DO

3t
S
Mg

fra MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F 12838 LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

21. Goodwill (Continued)

Huaxia Shenzhou

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.60%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management'’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

22. Inventories

20145 20134

ARBT T AREEFIT

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

R R OH R SR Raw materials and consumables 243,817 243,673
£ & Work in progress 64,063 86,997
RIRY o Finished goods 491,981 369,384
@t Total 799,861 700,054

149
Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



A B mARN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

23. HEWE

23. Properties for sale

20144 20134

AR®T R AR T T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

B LA HEwE Completed property for sale 67,639 -
ERERGB 2 ERDE Property under development for sale 736,750 569,488
804,389 569,488

REZE2012F12A3BILEE  AEBEE
EBAEMEFRBEILEEES GRS
EHERB A=W BEBBAMAEEIR
R B AR R P PIREE o SRR TR 20124F
MI-BEEESARE ME—HERE
E2014F12A3HIEFERT -2 THARTR
AR ARRMERTL -

B2014F 128318 {ELERBRZEEME
B BR B A R #5427,759,0007T (20134 A
R #5199,396,0007T, ) 78 #f #5 1A 57 45 HA R #E 51
+-EARET-

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
management decided to develop residential properties on two
parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong, the PRC
for sale and the relevant development plan had been approved
by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction work was
commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided into five phases
and phase 1 was completed during the year end 31 December
2014. The remaining four phases was expected to be completed in
the coming two years.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of RMB427,759,000 (2013: RMB199,396,000)
are expected to be completed within twelve months from the end
of reporting period.
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24, FEUNBR FX K H {th B WL K18 24. Trade and other receivables
20145 20135
ARBT AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
JFE Uk BR 3k Trade receivables 1,786,551 1,054,504
B RERFEEAE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (3,818) (6,169)
1,782,733 1,048,335
R A TEA A Prepayments for raw materials 36,176 85,304
JFE U S 1B Value added tax receivables 13,696 21,334
TEEMEEENTENBIR Prepaid taxes arising from pre-sale
of properties 39,588 30,714
BISIEPNGIEER i Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of
R B 25K a subsidiary - 10,000
%o K E b IE Deposits and other receivables 34,285 22,552
1,906,478 1,218,239
JEW R R BIER2014F12A31HZEA R Included in the trade receivables are bills receivable amounting to
1,539,006,0007T Z FEI R 1% (2013F : AR RMB1,539,006,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB811,604,000).
811,604,0007T ) °
AEBHRTEPZEREREER KA Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
A Ho0R - M EE — M R90R A sk180H 90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
WEE - RIEE =R (JrE s R A B in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
HE)  ANEBERHREHRER 2 ERERR trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
(MBRERE) NERERIITE2IWT - based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue

recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.
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24 EWWBR R HE# FEUL RN IE  24. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(&)
20144 20134
AR T ARET T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
90H A Within 90 days 1,524,267 955,840
91H ZE180H 91-180 days 250,277 86,345
181R LA above 180 days 8,189 6,150
1,782,733 1,048,335

EAETAHEEA ASESREHEF
MEERTHBEEFNEELERNET
BEMEREE -TPMERBEEMNERT
|G E LR ° 99% (20134F : 98% ) 2K 1
M AREZBREREEEEAETNR
HEATR - AEEETEFANESE 2
AREERHZEERE-

AEBZEBEFEHRBIELERAEASA
R #£27,340,0007T (20134 = A R #23,280,000
TLIZEF - RREBACAMAEEL
EREREEEELD B AEEWARR I
EHEREFEMERSERAER

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 99% (2013: 98%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The Group
offers various settlement terms which vary depending on the size
of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB27,340,000 (2013:
RMB23,280,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these
balances.

20145 20134

ARET T AREF T

2014 2013

RMB'000 RMB'000

918 £180H 91-180 days 19,151 17,130
181H &365H 181-365 days 8,189 6,150
27,340 23,280

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH
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24, Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of the
Company consider they are in good credit quality.

REREEH Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20144 20135
AR® TR AREEFIT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 6,169 8,304
e 5R FE UL BR OB B Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables (139) 111
RAETRE B MM EE A FIE  Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,212) (2,246)
FIREERR Balance at end of the year 3,818 6,169

VA | B R B A5 7 1 RE U 12 A 8 KRR SK Y
AR

RSB ERNIEEENINNEET
BENASERERAFSINT

The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
which are considered not recoverable.

The Group's account receivables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

EpH AR
T Tt
uss RMB
‘000 ‘000
72014128318 As at 31 December 2014 17,210 105,308
M2013F12H31H As at 31 December 2013 18,120 110,475

m— R E A B IR R IR E R A
AR 1% AR R o%st B M EREL E20145
NRAJNBIEFEEZHEE-

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary was
unsecured, charged at interest rate of 2% per month and fully
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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25. ZFEEX

25. Entrusted loans

20144 20134F

ARBT AREF T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

ZiEEX Entrusted loans 370,000 425,000

2014F 12 A3 1 HNEHRIEMZ B BILE =
R AR #370,000,0007T (2013%F 1 AR
#425,000,0007T ) ZFEE F e 12014512 431
B - & % A R ¥370,000,0007T (20134 : &)
MBI E = HER-M2013F128318 &
SEE R A R 4250000007 A &
AR o 42 B TFF F L 10.2%212% (20135 ¢
102%ZE12%) 5T B 2 ZEE RN —F R
Ho

REBEENHEB AR SRFEBANE
AMRETHR WA HEEEBANGE
REERATEBANEELR - ALEIR
HIAREFIGER BRIERERESLRE
(N T AR #20,000,0007CF A R #80,000,000
7L (20134 : AR ¥7,000,0000t & A R #&
80,000,0007T) ~ &) - EH AN ERAREER
EEMEH - BRAIRE HIRIL K8 B R
BE-BERETEBILE=AOEAMKR
WAl ER G AR BEERERA -

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

The balance represents entrusted loans to several independent
third parties amounting to RMB370,000,000 at 31 December
2014 (2013: RMB425,000,000). At 31 December 2014, balance of
RMB370,000,000 (2013: nil) was guaranteed by independent third
parties. At 31 December 2013, entrusted loans with total, balance
of RMB425,000,000 were unsecured. The entrusted loans bear
fixed interest ranging from 10.2% to 12% (2013: 10.2% to 12%) per

annum with maturity of one year.

Before accepting any new debtor, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new debtor and assesses the
potential debtor’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
debtor. The Group offers various settlement terms which vary
depending on the size of contract ranging from RMB20,000,000 to
RMB80,000,000 (2013: RMB7,000,000 to RMB80,000,000), credibility
and reputation of the debtor. Loans are not past due or impaired
at the end of reporting period. The directors continuously evaluate
the creditworthiness of the independent third parties and may,
on a case by case basis, extend the repayment date on mutual
agreement.
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26. CHEARTER RITEHRK

Be

BEMEEEEROEEBRITERAAR
#5185,145,0007T (20134 : A & #106,320,000
7T) A E AR EE-

BRI RMBITERIZFHF Rt
B o BIKIFIRITERIIRITHE R R2014F
12A31 B 89N FH EBR T X 5 5l £2.80%
(20134 : 2.80% ) }20.35% (2013%F : 0.35% ) °

U EEERNIEEEAINEET
ENAKERITESRIIINT

fra B TSR M 5T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12831HEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

cash

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB185,145,000 (2013:
RMB106,320,000) have been pledged to secure the bills payable
and are therefore classified as current assets.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2014 were
2.80% (2013: 2.80%) and 0.35% (2013: 0.35%) respectively.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

S AR®
T T
uss RMB
000 000
7M20145F12A31H As at 31 December 2014 5,706 34918
7R2013F12A31H As at 31 December 2013 11,184 68,187
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27. BNRIAREMESRERRE
HEMFRERRE

27. Trade and other payables & deposits

received from pre-sale of properties

(a) ENERIRRHEMENSKIE (a) Trade and other payables
20144 20135
AR® TR ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

FEATBR R Trade payables 1,255,355 941,408

AW P RIE Receipt in advance from customers 74,741 62,048

FEATBE T3 EM (Bff5Ei)  Payroll payable (Note i) 185,426 224,847

VI WS T RAEFEST  Payable for property, plant and equipment

A (KEi) (Note i) 108,798 117,647

H b e R IE Other tax payables 32,323 12,203

BB RIEB AR Other deposits in relation to property

HmRER development project 58,000 110,955
ELERB 2 EEYWE  Construction cost payables for properties
) JE 1~ e TR AR under development for sale 191,121 48,525

H b e N EETFIE  Other payables and accruals 66,855 86,748

5 Total 1,972,619 1,604,381

ks Notes:

0] R2014F 128318 ENBIHFM2E 0] As at 31 December 2014, included in the payroll payable is a
—BATFEMNBARIEBHRESRE provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
AR #62631,0007T (20135 : AR ¥ subsidiaries amounting to RMB62,631,000 (2013: RMB58,348,000).
58348,0007T) - BH S FEE A S E The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire obligation
MEBEAREENZBEHRESEE Ty for social insurance fund for employees of PRC subsidiaries and
REFR B RERET - WIREBER is determined based on the relevant national regulations on
AR 5T 8 - fHRE B E BERT social insurance and calculated based on the basic counting unit
—FEFHIE THELIREMTRE multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic counting unit
BFERMGHTR- for social insurance shall be the average wages of an employee in

the preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum limit
promulgated by the local social insurance bureau each year.

(ii) UeEE D2 - 28 R AR O FE 1P SR IB A A (i) The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
s R BRI TR B — AR settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant
WK R AFETAFIEEETIR. and machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in

progress during the year.
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27. BNRIAREMESRERRE
HAEYMFRERRE (&)

(a)

Pt IR A R H fth BB (Y KR

(%)

FE IR BB 1 3 A R %6698,855,0007T
(20135 : AR #295490,0007T ) 2 FEft
ER -ENEEAAEENEEAR
T RE R -

REEMOTFHEERROA - KNE
BB HIRTE E M SRR E B A
ARMARNREREEHRAB

f&e

RIERZAH  EABREROEREDT
E5WT

27.

fra B TSR M 5T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

Trade and other payables & deposits

received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)

(a)

Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting
to RMB698,855,000 (2013: RMB295,490,000). Bills payable are
secured by the Group's pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,
presented based on invoice date:

20144 20134

ARBT T AREF T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

30BA Within 30 days 321,912 686,530
31 E90H 31-90 days 481,385 174,941
91HZ=180H 91-180 days 399,077 52,744
1818 £365H 181-365 days 38,301 12,929
[GEEEPES 1-2 years 9,337 8,254
BB More than 2 years 5,343 6,010
1,255,355 941,408

ERERBE-—HENRENE A
W % FE 12 R A% BR BR 5k A R #64,390,000
7t (2013512 A318 « A R #£5,464,000
J0)  BRER TI30B N - SR 215
BEH-—MA=ZZ NEA-EHERE
ZEERMENEMSETRAER IR
90H A -

157

Included in the trade payables is trade payables to two non-
controlling shareholders of two subsidiaries amounting to
RMB4,390,000 (31 December 2013: RMB5,464,000) which
are aged within 30 days. The general credit period given by
them is three to six months. The construction cost payables
for properties under development for sale are aged within 90
days.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2014



A B mARN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

27. BEHRAREMENSRERKE 27. Trade and other payables & deposits

FEWEDWZRSE (1E) received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)
@ ENERAREMEFRNRE (a) Trade and other payables (Continued)
()
REBEBERER LS The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated
LASNZ BB ST E &) FE - BR S0 K EL At f& in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant
RIRIBEZ A - group entities are set out below:
EYH ARY
T T
Uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
M20145F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 8,696 53,213
72013F 128318 As at 31 December 2013 1,536 9,366
(b) RRTEEMEEWES (b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties
20145 20135
AR¥T T ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

HIBEWEEWILZE  Deposits received from pre-sale of

(BfsE) properties (Note) 539,550 438,784
MisE: ZemARTEESEMERTSERN Note:  The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers arising
FKIA from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.
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HZE2014F128318 1EFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

28. Borrowings
20144 20134
AR®T AREF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR AR ﬁfé??é’\ Unsecured bank loans 3,066,265 1,662,850
BEEITER Secured bank loans 20,000 70,379
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgm Unsecured other loans 121,420 316,450
BHEMEAME K Secured other loans 68,839 102,885
3,276,524 2,152,564
AR AT EARR AE R Y Carrying amount repayable:
BREE :
15 1A Within one year 1,390,437 866,474
ZIMFE S FBIR2EF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 1,554,531 831,795
Z I E BB IBSF More than two years, but not more than
five years 331,556 454,295
3,276,524 2,152,564
BN RBEETH Less: Amount due within one year shown
19 A B 8RR IE under current liabilities 1,390,437 866,474
112 B iR IE Amount due after one year 1,886,087 1,286,090

M2014F 128318 - AR #20,000,0007T
(20134 : AR¥E70,379,0007T ) Hy B I IRIR 1T
B BAEEREZE A A K9329000
7 (201345 : A R#297,422,0007T ) H 1 F
(203F BF HERZHE)UKE@DR
BB AR®22350007T (2013F : AR

As at 31 December 2014, secured bank loans of RMB20,000,000
(2013: RMB70,379,000) were secured by the Group's buildings
(2013:buildings and plant and machinery) with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB9,329,000 (2013: RMB297,422,000) and
prepaid lease payments with the aggregate carrying amount of
RMB2,235,000 (2013: RMB2,307,000). The secured bank loans carry

2,307,00070) TEN A S EBIEF - 25 H K interest at 6.00% to 7.20% (2013: 6.00% to 7.20%) per annum.
IR 1T E IR F B6.00%ZE7.20% (20134

6.00%Z7.20% ) 5t & o
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28. B E (&) 28. Borrowings (Continued)

2014 12A31A A — K M#EBED
BB 3 H A B B FE S B 11,250,000
7L (& B A R #68839,0007T) (20134
16,875,000% 7T, ( #8E 7 A R #102,885,000
JT) ) - BANE E R A E AR 175,235,000
7T (2013%F © AR #5194,478,0007T ) K1 83 &
R R EBRMABE A R%62,704,0007T (2013
F: AR™64,487,0007T) MBS 1ERE
o ZEBFIRMBIRITRIER B INF B3%
FPE-FR ANEERBBRAERE N REN
BT BB A A R#3,157,0007T (20134F @ A
R#£3,:892,0007T) °

EMmERREREEEEERARKE
41,420,0007T (20134 : A R #36,450,000
To) cEMEMEBIT REMEFIZE T
57 B B5.85%%7.75% (20134F  6.00% %
962% )5t B

AEBEEREERREANIHA (REH
EER)IMT:

As at 31 December 2014, secured other loan made by a
financial institution represented borrowings of US$11,250,000
(equivalent to RMB68,839,000) (2013: US$16,875,000 (equivalent
to RMB102,885,000) which was secured by the Group’s plant
and machinery with the aggregate carrying amount of
RMB175,235,000 (2013: RMB194,478,000) and prepaid lease
payments with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB62,704,000
(2013: RMB64,487,000). The loan carries interest at LIBOR+3% per
annum. During the year, interest expense of RMB3,157,000 (2013:
RMB3,892,000) was paid and payable by the Group in relation to the
loans.

Included in the unsecured other loans are interest free loans of
RMB41,420,000 (2013: RMB36,450,000). Other unsecured bank and
other loans carry fixed and variable interests ranging from 5.85% to
7.75% (2013: 6.00% to 9.62%) per annum.

The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

20145 20134
ARBT R ARETTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings
TR Within one year 923,500 169,750
Z I F BT BB In more than one year but not more than
two years 400,000 593,500
1,323,500 763,250
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R2014%12A31H

MEREHE =
ARE E/‘EE‘%WJWJDO%i 15%
1,684,985,0007T (RFE B rFI%
6.15%%7.75% )
AR R BERIT R ZE 7 2 003%
68,839,0007C
AR B BUIRTT R E 7 B In3%
157,780,0007C
720131283180
MEREH A=
ARE R T EIN0%ZE15%
1,249,979,0007T (FERBEBFX:
6.00%%7.20% )
AR B ZIRTT R E 57 B In3%

102,885,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

28. Borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

Loan amount as at
31 December 2014 Interest rate
RMB1,684,985,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
6.15% to 7.75%)
RMB68,839,000 LIBOR plus 3%

RMB157,780,000 HIBOR plus 3%

Loan amount as at
31 December 2013 Interest rate
RMB1,249,979,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
6.00% to 7.20%)

RMB102,885,000 LIBOR plus 3%

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate and the LIBOR/HIBOR. The standard lending rate
is promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of
borrowing at standard lending rate will be reset when there is a
change in the borrowing rate promulgated by the People’s Bank
of China. The interest of borrowings at LIBOR is reset on a quarterly
basis and the interest of borrowings at HIBOR is reset on a monthly
basis.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20144 20134
2014 2013

6.15% to 7.75% 6.00% to 9.62%

VRS Effective interest rate:
EBEE Fixed-rate borrowings
FEMEE Variable-rate borrowings

3.77% to 7.76% 3.71% to 7.75%
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28. Borrowings (Continued)

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

out below:

Ep AR

Tt Tt

uss$ RMB

‘000 ‘000

R2014F12H318 As at 31 December 2014 31,250 191,219
2013512 H31H As at 31 December 2013 16,875 102,885
BT AR

Tt Tt

HK$ RMB

‘000 ‘000

R2014F12H31H As at 31 December 2014 200,000 157,780
201312 H31H As at 31 December 2013 - -

REZE2014F 128318 IEFE - ALBEEE
TR A ARE124042,0007T (2013F : AR
#5123,500,0007T ) B # fEHL 3R 52 HRER 1T B 5K
N & 58 A AR #1,722,198,0007T (20134 :

A R #684,500,0007T ) Ay & 5 3F R HI R 17
BER-REE2013F 128318 IEFE AL
TELAS € 58 A A R #316,450,0007T (2014
FE)NEEREMER.

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB1,124,042,000 (2013: RMB123,500,000) and unsecured
long-term bank loans in the amount of 1,722,198,000 (2013:
RMB684,500,000). During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group also obtained unsecured other loans in the amount of
RMB316,450,000 (2014: nil).
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28. Borrowings (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

E: undrawn borrowing facilities:
20145 20134
AR®T R ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
P A EIER Expiring within one year 1,886,087 4,369,700
B A1 B HA Expiring beyond one year 1,390,437 290,000
3,276,524 4,659,700

i E WA

W AIEC R AT L5 - a8 Kok
AREBRBEHRATBRG MW RAELKE

29. Deferred income

Deferred income represents government grants received in respect
of property, plant and equipment, costs incurred by the Group in

RTEN TR mEL - relation to development activities and the prepaid lease payments
for existing office and plant.

FRIELEWR AR ZE AT - Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20145 20134
ARBT ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
M ATH At 1 January 259,174 207,868
NE Additions 9,137 29,402

Wb — R B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32)

(B 5E32) - 34,288
TR Release to profit or loss (23,266) (12,384)
M12H31R At 31 December 245,045 259,174
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29. IEFEW A (£8)

29. Deferred income (Continued)

BWMEMENDITHET Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20145 20136
ARET T ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRERER 2 Current portion 10,623 12,797
JERNERER 2 Non-current portion 234,422 246,377
245,045 259,174
30. A< 30. Share capital
B8 [N
F % AREF T
Number Share
of shares capital
'000 RMB'000
FROIBTTHEBR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
SERE Authorised:
720139 K2014%F1 418 At 1 January 2013 and 2014 and
A K2014F12A31H 31 December 2014 4,000,000 382,200
EBITRHE: Issued and fully paid:
7201341 818 At 1 January 2013 2,120,552 201,111
EAEPNEEE = ) Shares repurchased and cancelled (1,233) (98)
7201441 818 At 1 January 2014 2,119,319 201,013
FE e kSRR D (Fi3E) Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note) (1,152) 91)
R2014%12 8318 At 31 Decernber 2014 2,118,167 200,922

REEBARAR —Z-NEFR
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= — . .
30. R4 (#&) 30. Share capital (Continued)
Mt RMESFERN  NARBBEBHEIIME Note: During both years, the Company repurchased its own shares through The
RARBREARFRHIAT Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:
BRE®K eERE
SFROAEBTH Price per share BT
ZEREE BS BIE Aggregate
No. of ordinary BT BT consideration
shares of Highest Lowest paid
[ AEN=p-] Date of repurchase HK$0.1 each HKS HKS HKS
07/01/2014 07/01/2014 300,000 3.02 294 894,000
27/01/2014 27/01/2014 352,000 2.86 267 973,280
28/01/2014 28/01/2014 100,000 278 269 273,500
05/02/2014 05/02/2014 400,000 2.70 263 1,066,000
1,152,000 3,206,780
24/06/2013 24/06/2013 300,000 299 297 894,000
25/06/2013 25/06/2013 633,000 296 292 1,858,860
03/07/2013 03/07/2013 300,000 298 297 893,000
1,233,000 3,645,860
LA ERRD R EE B8 T84 o The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
B X 484 583,206,780 T (SR HOAREE The total amount of HK$3,206,780 (2013: HK$3,645,860), equivalent to
2,535,00070) (2013%F : 364586075 7T (HBERLY RMB2,535,000 (2013: RMB2,898,000) was paid to repurchase the above shares.
AR¥28980007T) ) LARE @ Lt it -
FA-BEAQFMBATEE  HExER None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
RRAFUE] ETHES - Company's listed securities during the year.
~ =%

31. AR XA HIRRIE 31. Share-based payments
RABEHRXAFAEERERETS RER The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
T E (T3 81)) T3 R B 2007411 H16H Scheme (the “Schemes") were adopted pursuant to a resolution
MBRARRMERN E5ZENAERD passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
EEZNAEREE -REFE XARES incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the Schemes,
eAREERES (BEARTREMBA the board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
ANEERES ) RHERENRBARAA employees, including directors and employees of the Company and
A& 5 o its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

F20144F K2013F 128318 R ARBEE At 31 December 2014 and 2013, none of share in respect of which
AIEEARAERT S T E R B R RITEER options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
REBE IR R AR AR (D o Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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31. LR XA HIRIR (]

201451283318 BRETE THE R
R ARITEEBRES RO DEE B
141,300,0008% (20134 : 142,800,0008% ) * 4/
ERALNEE BB EITIRDM6.67% (2013

F674%) ©

BREM IS EERIFBT

31. Share-based payments (Continued)

issue at that date.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 141,300,000 (2013: 142,800,000),
representing 6.67% (2013: 6.74%) of the shares of the Company in

REH
HEM
B REER R BEH 5B 1TEH TEE AF¥HE
Fair value
Date of Exercise at grant
Option type grant Vesting period Exercise period price date
BRAMBEABRETS:
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
B
Share Option Scheme:
RYIESNERE
Options to directors
HEAREA 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012 01/06/2012201/06/2016 81387 3.067%87T
Option A 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.067
BB 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013 01/06/2013%01/06/2016 81387 32017%7T
Option B 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.201
HEhREC 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014 01/06/2014201/06/2016 81387 3314%87T
Option C 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.314
HEARHED 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015 01/06/2015201/06/2016 813 34118 T
Option D 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.411
RYTHEMESNERE
Options to other employees
B 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012 01/06/2012201/06/2016 81387 3.067%87T
Option E 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.067
HEAREr 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013 01/06/2013%01/06/2016 81387 32017%7T
Option F 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2 013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.201
BREG 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014 01/06/2014Z01/06/2016 813TL 33148 T
Option G 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.314
HE AR 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015 01/06/2015201/06/2016 81387 3411%BTT
Option H 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.411

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH
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31. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options

BREES: during the year ended 31 December 2014:
A20145F 20145
1A1H 12A31H
i R AT SR e RATE
Outstanding Outstanding
BB EER Option type at 1.1.2014 Forfeited  at31.12.2014
FB T TR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BE IR REA Option A 8,500 - 8,500
BB A% B Option B 8,500 - 8,500
B REC Option C 8,500 - 8,500
BARED Option D 8,500 - 8,500
fEARREE Option E 27,200 (375) 26,825
FERRErF Option F 27,200 (375) 26,825
B IEG Option G 27,200 (375) 26,825
BN Option H 27,200 (375) 26,825
142,800 (1,500) 141,300
20145 FARIFAI 1T (F Exercisable at the end
of the year 2014 105,975
INEFIIITEE Weighted average
exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13
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31. LR XA HIFRIR (]
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31. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options
during the year ended 31 December 2013:

20134 20134
1A18 128318
B ARITE B B ARATE
Outstanding Outstanding
B EER Option type at 1.1.2013 Forfeited at31.12.2013
Fh& T % T
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
HEAREA Option A 8,500 - 8,500
fEHES Option B 8,500 - 8,500
B AEC Option C 8,500 - 8,500
FEAR#ED Option D 8,500 - 8,500
RS HEE Option E 27,900 (700) 27,200
AR HEF Option F 27,900 (700) 27,200
BIREG Option G 27,900 (700) 27,200
FER EH Option H 27,900 (700) 27,200
145,600 (2,800) 142,800

2013 F FARBF AT 1T Exercisable at the end
of the year 2013 71,400
hnieFHITEE Weighted average 8137 7T 813 T
exercise price HK$8.13 HKS$8.13

RIEFH BH f5R2011F6 1B B EE
fi% 4 N B A A R #E405,174,0007C © EHE A
FEAMNRE -ErRETERETERA

H o
7t

HZE2014F12A31BILtFE  KREBEH
ARARERENBEREERASIARE
36,532,0007T (20134 : AR #74,962,000
JL) °

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 1 June 2011
at the date of grant was RMB405,174,000. These fair values were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The Group recognised the expense of RMB36,532,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB74,962,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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32. Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 21 February 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired 100% interest in Huaxia Shenzhou from independent third
parties for the expansion of the Group's Polymers business in the
PRC. Huaxia Shenzhou is principally engaged in the production and
sale of a variety of fluoropolymer fine chemicals, which is related to
the reporting and operating segment of “Polymers” of the Group.

EEERE Consideration transferred
AREFIT
RMB'000
Re Cash 590,000

Uiz % =5 78 48 B8 A A4S A R #6500,0007T B #E 4R
BRI WHREBRNEEERARAI R
AR AEEREMEERARE [1TEH
FIET-

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB500,000 have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised
directly as an expense in the period and included in the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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32. Wis—EMELE (&
REBENERZEEREE

32. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition
AREFIT
RMB'000
Yz Hes R Property, plant and equipment 384,485
BEWE MERBREZENKIE Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment 4,055
EfHEE— EREE D Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion 30,339
mLERE Intangible assets 99,593
BEEMIEEE Deferred tax assets 12,313
WITEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 39,706
JFE UK BR SR % EL At FE UL SR TR Trade and other receivables 144,809
FE Inventories 80,312
ENEE - RBEMH Prepaid lease payments — current portion %1
BHIRIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 56,500
JE A< BR SR % EL b FE 5 5RTR Trade and other payables (156,812)
WIAAE Tax liabilities (6,853)
B Borrowings (122,650)
PRIEUA Deferred income (34,288)
EERIBEEE Deferred tax liability (27,010)
505,460

JE Uk B 3R R E A B AR SR R UK BE B B
FAE A A R #144,809,0007C < FTEB M %%
FEUBR B R B FEUGRIBE A A S R
U B B B A A R #144,809,0007T ° 7 UL EE B
BT EEZRENENRSRENTERS

AREe

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR

collected amounted to nil.
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The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB144,809,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to RMB144,809,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
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32. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

KWBEEZHE Gooduwill arising on acquisition
AREF T
RMB'000
BHEEAE Consideration transferred 590,000
B BRI A BB EEFEZSE  Less: recognised amount of identifiable
FE(100%) net assets acquired (100%) (505,460)
WEEE ZHmE Goodwill arising on acquisition 84,540

HRAFRABEEHRRE  WRBEES
BMRAELEREE I A 2B NREER
BREAEHBRRENNE Kk K
KT EREREERANEBATFAERLZ
T BRZRFMNE A AI#A B EE
ZHERIRAE ST B B D FIRERR o

T8 HA bt TR MR B A 2 R BT T YRR B AR

WEELENER RN FHE

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Huaxia Shenzhou because the
cost of the combination included a control premium. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled workforce
of Huzxia Shenzhou. These benefits were not recognised separately
from goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria
for identified intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

AREFIT

RMB'000

EXHRERE Consideration paid in cash 590,000
B ER e NERBSIEE &5 Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (39,706)
550,294
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32. WIE—EKE LR (&

WEERARRERE2TE

HZE203FN2ANBLEFE 2 &FBERE
B A A R #120,745,0007T ° B £2013
FNRANALEFEZ KEBREREEESS
7 A R #610,770,0007T °

WA E2013F 12831 H L FERBIE S
FWREES A AAREENAKEKAA
R #6,856,600,0007T & & £20135F12H31H
LEFE R R M 8 A A R #444,029,0007T © i
EEEREFFHARS RO RMBRHRIKE
R SRR TRERAEEERR
FEI W RSEREE  MEREIERRKE
$E 2 TEM -

PRI B A8 B 50 AP HIH R B 4A B 11
BMEEASREZ [HE ] e K-
BEEREME BELRERETEENK
BEHZCHERSHAEDE HELRkB
KB EENE -

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR

32. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
RMB120,745,000 attributable to Huaxia Shenzhou. Revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2013 included RMB610,770,000
attributable to Huaxia Shenzhou.

Had the acquisition of Huaxia Shenzhou been effected from at
the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2013, the total
revenue of the Group would have been RMB6,856,600,000 and
the profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would have
been RMB444,029,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed at the beginning of
the interim period, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had
Huaxia Shenzhou been acquired at the beginning of the interim
period, the directors calculated depreciation and amortisation of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets based on
the recognised amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the date of the acquisition.
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33. &IE 33. Commitments
FR2014F12 8318 » ANE B i R M8 R A AR At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding commitments as
NS follows:
20145 20134
AR®T R ARBTT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR Capital Commitments
HREAWEYE SR ME  Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
RERZL  BEI41ME property, plant and equipment contracted
RELZA M EHREANEE for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 75,496 66,981
ARAFEFEBREENER Capital expenditure in respect of the
T BRI ERERE assessment of the exploration projects
B 5k M B contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 4,248 4,248
BHER—REBE QR ER Capital expenditure in respect of capital
FEMEAREZH BEIL contribution of interest in an associate
BRELRE TR AN contracted for but not provided in the
& (BIzE18) consolidated financial statements (note 18) - 5,000
79,744 76,229
H R Other commitment
EEERERBRZEEYWE  Construction commitment contracted in
REARTL  BEIHER respect of properties under development
TEfR e R NG for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 261,469 81,004
341,213 157,223
173
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34. HE &AL

34. Lease commitments

AEBEHEBEA The Group as lessee
201445 20134
AR%TR AR T T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRAEMEEHEREAEES  Minimum lease payments paid under
(NE- & operating leases during the year:
ES Premises 1,513 1,307
HETH Leasehold land 7,774 6,919
9,287 8,226

PSR B ISR - SR R ISR A I SAT 2
EREAGHERS TR XHBERD

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

™ leases which fall due as follows:
20145 2013%F
AR%TR ARETF T
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
1A Within one year 7,095 6,843

BLFEFESF In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BEEEMFE) 27,863 26,370
BiBSE Over five years 67,849 71,365
102,807 104,578

REMENFEIBEARERES T L0
FERT e E € - AR T ¥ R HI205 -

REEEARLAT —B-NEEH

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of 20 years.
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35. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a) Purchase of raw materials

20144 20135

AR¥T T AREFTT

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEIE IR AR R M Non-controlling interests 3,596 3,381

(b) TEEEABEHMH

FRN BEERNEMFTEEEABHH
g N

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

20144 20134

ARBT ARBTT

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

MEEEREF Short-term employee benefits 35,285 33,300

RIREF) Post-employment benefits 26 20
BETES FEMTH Share options granted to directors,

AEREEEEAE chief executive and key
A B A management personnel 11,429 24,779
46,740 58,129

iR K48 R 5T

REEEHE RS T B &) B E
EMBEZURRENET SRR AR EZAR
AEMFETAD L (REMKATE)
EREERINNES AKENE—TIE

B EREMEREE R

36. Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE2014F12A31BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. AR EMBAAFE

37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

Ei3t 758
HE2/ BT/ ADRFGREERELS ARABERER
WEARER EEER Fifs B4 85l BRRA ¢ L 1:4] TEEH
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
or registration/ ~ Class of registered held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held share capital Directly Indirectly the Company Principal activities
2014F  2013F  2014F  2013F  2014F 03F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
T % % % % % %
‘000 % % % % % %
RESAT HE A AR AR®641360C 10000 10000 - - 10000 10000 HERHEBRNELE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMB641,360 Manufacture and sale of
polytetrafluoroethylene
REMRT $ AR AR¥3400007 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 RUERHERLH
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of
refrigerant
REHEE + AR AR #800007C - - 6000 6000 6000 6000 ERHEH
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital RMB80,000 Production and sales of salt
RERERMELIBBRRA + AMER ARMI000070 2500 2500 75.00 7500 10000 10000 AERBEEEZR
Dongying Dongyue Precision ~ PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Production and sales of
Chemicals Co, Ltd bromine
REAE HE A EA AR®400000C 6979 6979 1343 1343 8322 832 RERBEEFRRALD
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
HongKong Taili International &7 FMER 10070 100.00 - - - 100,00 - HELEER
Trading Co, Ltd. (Mi#Fa)
HongKong Taili International ~ HK Registered capital HKD100 Sale of chemical products
Trading Co, Ltd. (Note a)
REB#KE # A EA ARH650000C  84.00 8400 16.00 1600 10000 10000 BUERHEEEHENR
Dongyue Organosilicon PRC Registered capital RMB650,000 Manufacture and sale of
organosilicon material
ARLRERERILT HE A EA AR¥700007 - - 5100 5100 5100 5100 RERBEEEKELE
BRRA
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak  PRC Registered capital RMB70,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd. anhydrous fluoride
FREERBEFRAR HE AfEA AR#9,0007 - - 8000 8000  80.00 8000 BERHELT
(Miztb) (2013 :
AR#2000)
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining PRC Registered capital RMB9,0007T Manufacture and sale of

Co, Ltd. (Note b)

REEEERLA —ZT-NFFR

(2013: RMB2,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

(Continued)
i3y Ave
gL/ BT/ ARRFEREERRLH ERRFERE
WEARERE EEEX PR 4 8 5 BRRE =83 B 4] TEEK
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
or registration/  Class of registered held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held share capital Directly Indirectly the Company Principal activities
2014F  013F  2014F  2013F  2014F 013F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
T % % % % % %
‘000 % % % % % %
AELERTAMBBERLR FE A EA AR #500007 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 RUERHELR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue PRC Registered capital RMB50,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. fluorite
LR E ST AR hE BRIEEN AR#115,7007C - - 5100 5100 51.00 5100 BERHEEKELD
BRAE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe PRC Registered capital RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. silicone rubber
LWRRESABEXERLA TE AR AR #800007 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 ¥EFE
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Registered capital RMB80,000 Property development
Property Co, Ltd.
BAREEEREHBRAR #E BRIEEN AR5,0007T - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 HEIES
Huangtai Dongyue PRC Registered capital RMB5,000 Sale of chemical products
International Trade Co,, Ltd.
EEWA HE ERUEEN AR 100007 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 EERHEEH
BHFIER
Huaxia Shenzhou PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer

REL WBARBERTEABEEES -
ETENRBARERBERRE-

@ HongKong TaiLi International Co,, Ltd.A 5 F £ &
100%Ff1 /8§ 2 @)+ i 28 2% A 120145F6 A3 B

-
VA

) REEFRFEEFRARREE2014F12A31H
IEFE I INE A A E A R #9,000,0007T ©

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.

Notes:

(a) HongKong TaiLi International Co,, Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of Dongyue group,,

has been set up by the Company on 3 June 2014

(b) Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd had increased its registered capital to
RMB9,000,000 during the year end 31 December 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2014F12ANALEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

38. "R A MR TRBEE

position of the company

38. Summarised statement of financial

20145 20134

AR T ARET T

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

LERE VS Property, plant and equipment - -
R BRARMNEE Investments in subsidiaries 1,523,881 1,523,874
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments 126,256 126,256
RITHEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 15,444 10,966
HEMReEE Other current assets 145,613 209
HEnshaE Other current liabilities (63,546) (95)
HEiIERBEE Other non-current liabilities (94,668) -
1,652,980 1,661,210

AR 2 (HMI5E30) Share capital (note 30) 200,922 201,013
fwEfE (MIsE) Reserves (Note) 1,452,058 1,460,197
1,652,980 1,661,210

REEBARAR —ZT-NEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2014F 12831 B ILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

38. Summarised statement of financial

position of the company (Continued)

B3 Note:
fREEE: Movement in the reserves:
ROEE BRERE REIRE KEER st
Share
Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2013F1 A1B &8 Balance at 1 January 2013 1,238,838 270,825 200,344 (274,897) 1435110
FRRFNEEEBALE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 172,353 172,353
EARIRE Dividends paid - - - (219,428) (219,428)
RRIEEE 2 AR 25008 Recognition of equity-settled
shared-based payments - 74,962 - - 74,962
BE [0 & s SRR (D Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,800) - - - (2,800)
2013451231 B &8k Balance at 31 December 2013 1,236,038 345,787 200,344 (321972) 1,460,197
FRBEFREEBALE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 101,088 101,088
BEARRE Dividends paid - - - (143315) (143315)
RIREEE 2 AR 2308 Recognition of equity-settled
shared-based payments - 36,532 - - 36,532
B8O MR (D Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,444) - - - (2,444)
2014F 1231 B 48 Balance at 31 December 2014 1,233,594 382319 200,344 (364,199 1,452,058
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Five-Year Financial Summary

BEERESE Assets and liabilities
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20105 201146 20126 2013%F 20145
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AR%®TR
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEAE Total Assets 6,898,115 9,128,932 8,777,989 10,032,631 12,003,560
BEAE Total Liabilities (4,031,527) (4,053,636) (3,551,131) (4521,803)  (6,105,756)
2,866,588 5,075,296 5,226,358 5,510,828 5,897,804
ENRAEEAEMGESZ  Equity attributable to
Owners of the Company 2,674,266 4783088 40948315 5,266,849 5,640,807
FERBRRER Non-controlling interests 192322 292,208 278543 243979 256,997
2,866,588 5,075,296 5,226,358 5,510,828 5,897,804
URCE ¥ Financial results
M12831H
As at 31 December
2010%F 20114 20124 20134 20145
ARBETIT AREFT AREFT AREFT AR®TR
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i % Revenue 5,964,322 10,165,200 7,050,822 6,782,814 7,599,696
SHE AR Cost of sales (4,320,670) (6,126913) (5,367,436) (5686752)  (6,383,611)
EX Gross profit 1,643,652 4,038,287 1,683,386 1,096,062 (1,216,085)
HAl A Other income 35,859 66,058 117817 178,186 290,501
DEEHEERT Distribution and selling expenses (171,279) (211,849) (209912) (253,976) (251,209)
THAX Administrative expenses (314,783) (590,984) (367,203) (298,483) (289,791)
RERAERS Research and development expenses (14,809) (9,603) (33,764) (71,668) (73,398)
BEMR A Finance costs (113.923) (150,277) (136,076) (89,065) (201,441)
IR AUNETE S Share of results of associates 1192 01) 324 445 283
BRE AT R Profit before tax 1,065,909 3,141,431 1,054,572 561,501 691,030
FTER X Income tax expense (284,412) (880,550) (347,509) (124,275) (194,034)
EEERARK Profit and total comprehensive
ZHEHBAHLE income for the year 781,497 2,260,881 707,063 437,226 496,996
T5I& 7 AR ER Profit and total comprehensive
R2EWA (B%)#E .  Income(expense) attributable to:
AARIEAR A Owners of the Company 733,869 2,189,861 713,056 465,398 483,276
R R E S Non-controlling interests 47628 71,020 (5993) (28,672) (13,720)
781497 2,260,881 707,063 437,226 496,996
REEEARAT —T-NFER 180
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Ltd.
Floor 4 Willow House

Cricket Square PO. Box 2804

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, AXA Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi (President)

Mr. CUI Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr.WU Tao

Mr. ZHANG Jian

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. LIU Yi (resigned on 14 August 2014)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014)
Mr. YUE Rundong
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands
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Company secretary
Mr. NG Kwok Choi

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Mr. NG Kwok Choi

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Vi
Mr. YUE Rundong

Remuneration committee

Mr. LIU Yi (Chairman, resigned on 14 August 2014)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (Chairman, appointed on 14 August 2014)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. LIU Yi (resigned on 14 August 2014)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (appointed on 14 August 2014)

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong
Mr. LIU Chuangi
Dr. WU Tao

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer

office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of Communications Company Limited
Zibo Branch

100 Jin Jing Road

Zhang Dian Qu

Zibo

Shandong Province, PRC
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China Everbright Bank Company Ltd.
Zibo Branch

107 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo

Shandong Province PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

A-World Consulting Limited
Unit 2401-2402, 24th Floor
Tower 2 Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

Stock code
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